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Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 
Time: Regular Session 4:30 PM 
Location: Essex County Civic & Education Centre – Room C 
 360 Fairview Avenue West, Essex Ontario 

List of Business Page Numbers 

1. Call To Order 

2. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

February 2, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes 1-12 

4. Delegations 

There are no delegations. 

5. Correspondence 

There are no items for discussion.  

6. Finance and Administration 

A) Status of 2016 EWSWA Budget Approval 13-27 

B) 2015 EWSWA Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 28-48 

C) January to March 2016 Financial Report 49-51 

7. Waste Disposal 

A) Rental and Use of Vacant Land RFP Results 52-53 

B) Closed Landfill #3 Clay Capping Project and Benefits 54-56 

C) Closed Landfill #3 Technical Review Committee and Compensation Fund 57-59 
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8. Waste Diversion 

A) Bill 151 – Waste Free Ontario Act, 2015 60-65 

B) Windsor Blue Box Collection Tender Results Effective 2017 66-67 

C) 2015 Residential Waste Diversion Cover Report (WD Report Attached Separately) 68-69 

9. Any Other Business 

  

10. By-Laws 

A) 02-2016 – Being a By-Law to Authorize the General Manager to Enter Into an 
Agreement with the Corporation of the County of Essex and Christopher Malott 
Farming Enterprises Inc. for the Rental and Use of Vacant Land 70-77 

B) 03-2016 – Being a By-Law to Confirm the Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board 
of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 78 

11. Next Meeting 

Tuesday, June 7, 2016 

12. Adjournment 



Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority
Regular Board Meeting

Minutes

 
 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 
Time: Regular Session 4:30PM 

In-Camera Session Immediately Following Regular Session 
Location: Essex County Civic and Education Centre – Meeting Room C 

360 Fairview Avenue West, Essex Ontario 

Attendance: 

Board Members:  Ken Antaya  County of Essex 
 Ron McDermott County of Essex 
Vice Chair Hilda MacDonald County of Essex 
 Tom Bain (Ex-Officio) County of Essex 
 Rino Bortolin City of Windsor 
 Fred Francis City of Windsor 
 Ed Sleiman City of Windsor 
Chair Hilary Payne City of Windsor 
Absent: Jo-Anne Gignac City of Windsor 
 Drew Dilkens (Ex-Officio) City of Windsor 
EWSWA Staff: Eli Maodus General Manager 

 Michelle Bishop Manager of Finance and Administration 
 Cameron Wright Manager of Waste Diversion 

 Katherine Hebert Executive Secretary 
 Ralph Reiser Manager of Waste Disposal 
County of Essex Staff: Rob Maisonville Director of Corporate Services / Treasurer 

 Mary Brennan Director of Council Services / Clerk 
City of Windsor Staff: Dwayne Dawson Executive Director of Operations, 

Engineering 
 Tony Ardovini Deputy Treasurer 
 Anne Marie Albidone Manager of Environmental Services 

1. Call to Order 

As the Board’s Chair and Vice-Chair have yet to be elected for 2016, the General 
Manager called the meeting to order at 4:30 PM.  
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2. Welcome to New Board Member for 2016 – Windsor Councillor Jo-Anne Gignac 

The General Manager noted that the Board is composed of 9 voting members with the 
majority alternating between the City of Windsor and County of Essex along with the 
Chair and Vice Chair positions. The City of Windsor has appointed Jo-Anne Gignac to 
serve as it’s fifth Board Member for 2016. Unfortunately Ms. Gignac is unable to attend 
this meeting as she is attending an out-of-town event as Mayor Dilkens’ representative.  

3. Election of a Chair and Vice Chair for 2016 

The General Manager noted that the Chair will be elected from among City of Windsor 
representatives and the Vice Chair will be elected from among County of Essex 
representatives. He called for nominations for a Board Chair from among the City of 
Windsor representatives. 

Mr. Sleiman nominated Hilary Payne for Board Chair. No seconder is required.  

The General Manager called 2 additional times for nominations for the position of Board 
Chair. None were noted. He then asked Mr. Payne whether he would stand for the 
Board Chair position. 

Hilary Payne accepted the nomination. 

Moved By Ed Sleiman 
Seconded By No Seconder Required 
THAT City Councillor Hilary Payne be named as Board Chair for the period 
ending on December 31, 2016. 

-Carried Unanimously 
1-2016 

Mr. Payne assumed the Chair position and continued the election process.  

The Chair called for nominations for a Board Vice-Chair from among the County of 
Essex representatives.  

Mr. Antaya nominated Hilda MacDonald for Board Vice-Chair. No seconder required.  

The Chair called 2 additional times for nominations for the position of Board Vice-Chair. 
None were noted. He then asked Ms. MacDonald whether she would stand for the 
Board Vice-Chair position. 

Hilda MacDonald accepted the nomination. 

Moved By Ken Antaya 
Seconded By No Seconder Required 
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THAT County Councillor Hilda MacDonald be named as Board Vice Chair for the 
period ending on December 31, 2016 

-Carried Unanimously 
2-2016 

The Chair declared the election period closed and proceeded with the meeting.  

4. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest 

The Chair called for any declarations of pecuniary interest. The Chair expressed that 
should a conflict of a pecuniary nature or other arise at any time during the course of the 
meeting that it would be noted at that time. 

5. Approval of the Minutes 

A) December 1, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Moved By Ron McDermott 
Seconded By Ed Sleiman 
THAT the Minutes from the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority regular 
meeting, dated December 1, 2015 be approved and adopted. 

-Carried Unanimously 
3-2016 

6. Business Arising From the Minutes  

There was no business arising from the minutes. 

7. Correspondence 

There were no items for distribution. 

8. Delegation 

There were no delegations present.  
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9. Waste Disposal 

A) Termination of Agreement Between EWSWA and the County of Essex with Integrated 
Gas Recovery Services Inc. (IGRS) 

The General Manager advised the Board that IGRS enacted the termination clause of 
the Regional Landfill Gas Rights agreement effective December 31, 2015. 

Further, the General Manager discussed the report’s recommendations. He noted that 
Administration is seeking authorization from the Board to enter into an agreement to be 
executed between the Authority and Integrated Gas Recovery Services Inc. for the 
provision of operation and maintenance services for the Regional Landfill’s gas 
collection and flaring system at a cost of at least $80,400 annually plus HST, that was 
previously not included in the 2016 budget. He further noted that the existing agreement 
has terminated. 

Mr. Sleiman questioned with the proposed agreement, who would be doing the work 
associated with the collection of gas and flare operation?  

The General Manager indicated that IGRS will continue to perform all the same duties 
as they did in the past, the difference being that under the previous agreement, the 
Authority exchanged the ‘gas rights’ and not a monetary amount. This contract would be 
for payment of a monetary amount. 

Discussion took place with regard to the energy grid locally and the opportunities for the 
Authority to tie in and produce electricity. It was noted that although some space on the 
grid may be available at the Kingsville transformer station in 2018 after a new station is 
built in Leamington, it is unknown whether the Authority may be allowed to tie in. The 
General Manager noted that despite the multiple applications made by the Authority to 
receive approval for energy generation, none have been successful nor have any landfill 
gas generation projects across the Province. It is unknown when or if that will happen.  

Mr. Bain questioned what is the cost of running the gas collection and flare system.  

The Manager of Waste Disposal indicated that IGRS is responsible for all the 
maintenance and operation of the system, and that costs approximately $6,700 
monthly. Monitoring and compliance is performed to ensure the system is running 
correctly.  

Mr. Bortolin questioned whether Kingsville was the only transformer station option for 
the Authority to tie into. 

The General Manager indicated that although technically there are other possibilities, 
tying in elsewhere is cost prohibitive.  
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The Chair called the question 

Moved By Ken Antaya 
Seconded By Hilda MacDonald 
That the Board receive the report as information; and 
 
That the Authority Board authorize an agreement to be executed between the 
Authority and Integrated Gas Recovery Services Inc. for the provision of 
operation and maintenance services for the Regional Landfill’s gas collection and 
flaring system at a cost of at least $80,400 annually plus HST. 

-Carried Unanimously 
4-2016 

B) Appointment of a Board Member to the Landfill Liaison Committee for 2016 

The Manager of Waste Disposal offered a summary of the activities of the Landfill 
Liaison Committee and noted that it meets 4 times per year.  

Mr. Bain nominated Hilda MacDonald as the Board representative on the Landfill 
Liaison Committee. He noted that the nature of the committee is one that requires some 
getting accustomed to, and since Ms. MacDonald was the Board’s representative during 
2015 it may be appropriate for her to continue on. 

The Chair asked Ms. MacDonald whether she would continue her role on the LLC for 
2016. 

Ms. MacDonald accepted the nomination. 

Moved By Tom Bain 
Seconded By Rino Bortolin 
THAT the Board appoint Hilda MacDonald to the Landfill Liaison Committee for 
the year 2016. 

-Carried Unanimously 
5-2016 

10. Finance and Administration 

A) EWSWA 2016 Budget Approval Status 

The General Manager provided a summary of the EWSWA budget approval process 
and the timeline to date for the 2016 budget. He noted that on November 18, 2015 the 
County of Essex approved the EWSWA budget and on December 21, 2015 the City of 
Windsor did not approve the budget.  
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The General Manager explained the process for dispute resolution as mandated by the 
1994 agreement between the City of Windsor and the County of Essex that created the 
Authority.  

Mr. McDermott expressed that the dispute resolution process seems redundant to the 
approval process. He noted that in preparing the budget Authority administration meets 
in committee with City and County administration, then it is referred to members of City 
and County councils, this seems like a redundant process. How are members of ad hoc 
committees selected?  

Mr. Payne expressed support for following a three step procedure is resolving the issue.  

Mr. Antaya expressed that despite his confidence in EWSWA Administration’s 
preparation of the budget, he is in favour of following the due diligence process and the 
Dispute Resolution Mechanism. It is not a policy review, only the budget. 

Mr. Francis agreed with the procedure of following the 3 step procedure, noting that 
perhaps a second look may uncover some savings. 

Mr. Sleiman questioned the frequency of the need for the dispute resolution process 
since 1994. 

The General Manager indicated that this was the first time it was implemented.  

Mr. Francis questioned how long the review process might take.  

The General Manager indicated that it was not known for certain, but that initial 
arrangements to meet with Windsor’s CAO and the CAO of the County of Essex will be 
set up as quickly as possible.  

Moved By Fred Francis 
Seconded By Ron McDermott 
1. That the Board implement the dispute resolution mechanism and that the 
Board instruct its General Manager to communicate with the CAOs for the City of 
Windsor and the County of Essex to convene a joint committee of City and 
County administration under article 5.(d)(i) of the 1994 agreement which created 
the Authority. 
 
2. That the Board approve its General Manager to communicate with the Mayor 
of the City of Windsor and the Warden of the County of Essex to convene an ad 
hoc committee of City and County Council members for the purpose of 
considering a report from the joint administration committee. 

-Carried Unanimously 
6-2016 
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B) 2015 Budget Projection and 2016 Budget Update 

The Manager of Finance and Administration noted that there have been some changes 
since November when the budget was presented, related to some estimates and 
changes to information. She noted $245,000 in additional revenue from 2 sources which 
may serve to offset some final surplus/deficit amounts for the 2015 budget.  

Mr. Bortolin asked for clarification on greenhouse vines and why they were not 
considered organics. 

The Manager of Finance and Administration indicated that greenhouse vines are 
generally mixed with contamination materials such as plastic clips and plastic film which 
makes the material a refuse material and not organics.  

The Manager of Finance and Administration noted that there are also some changes for 
the 2016 budget that relate to revenue and expenses as follows: ICI Non-Landfilled Tip 
Fee Revenue, ICI Landfilled Tip Fee Revenue, Landfill Gas Management Expense and 
Landfilling Heavy Equipment Operators Expense. She further noted that in summary it 
is not an amount that will have a significant impact on the final budget, but the Board is 
being advised of the amendments so that they may be included in the final 2016 budget 
document.  

Moved By Hilda MacDonald 
Seconded By Fred Francis 
THAT the Board receive the report as information and that the revised figures be 
included in the 2016 amended budget document. 

-Carried Unanimously 
7-2016 

C) Summary of Legal Accounts 

Moved By Ed Sleiman 
Seconded By Tom Bain 
THAT the Board approve the payment of the legal invoice on the statement 
presented. 

-Carried Unanimously 
8-2016 
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11. Waste Diversion Issues 

A) Closure of Goodwill Donation Centre at Windsor Public Drop-Off Depot 

The Manager of Waste Diverion provided a financial overview and a summary of the 
relationship with Goodwill at the Windsor Public Drop Off. He noted that there have 
been no financial implications for the Authority, in the establishing of the Goodwill drop 
off nor in the removal of same. The donation centre was implemented following the 
master plan review recommendations.  

Mr. Francis questioned whether another charity will take over at the donation site.  

The Manager of Waste Diversion indicated that there is currently another charity’s 
unattended donation bin on site for the interim. Another charity may come forward with 
a proposal to have an attended drop off area. 

Mr. Bortolin questioned what will happen to the 65 tonnes of waste diverted by 
donations, will that be landfilled instead? 

The Manager of Waste Diversion reassured that items can still be donated and diverted 
from landfilling at other drop off locations. 

Moved By Ken Antaya 
Seconded By Fred Francis 
THAT the Board receive the report pertaining to the closure of the Goodwill 
Donation Centre at the Public Drop Off Depot as information. 

-Carried Unanimously 
9-2016 

B) Windsor Tender for Recycling Collection 

The General Manager noted that the report was to advise the Board that the City of 
Windsor is in the process of calling tender and awarding a contract for recycling 
collection as authorized under the 1994 agreement creating the Authority. A report will 
be presented to Windsor Council by their administration outlining the details. One option 
put forward in the tender was a request for weekly collection pricing, as was 
recommended in the master plan review from 2011.  

Moved By Fred Francis 
Seconded By Ron McDermott 
THAT the Board receive the report pertaining to the Windsor Recycling collection 
tender as information. 

-Carried Unanimously 
10-2016 
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C) Extension of the Contract for the Provision of Equipment and Labour for the Repair 
and Maintenance of Processing Equipment in Two Recycling Centres in the City of 
Windsor 

The Manager of Waste Diversion discussed the current repair and maintenance 
contract. He noted that the extension from April 2, 2016 that is proposed in the report 
will coincide with the expiry at November 30, 2017 of the contract for County recycling 
collection and processing of all Essex-Windsor recyclables. For the next contract in 
2017 the maintenance and repair work will be integrated and form part of the processing 
contract. The Board will maintain the control of awarding future contracts separately 
when the time comes if so desired. 

Mr. Anataya questioned whether there was an extension clause built into the contract.  

The Manager of Waste Diversion confirmed that an extension clause was included in 
the original contract.  

Moved By Ken Antaya 
Seconded By Ed Sleiman 
THAT the Board authorize an extension of the contract with Windsor Disposal 
Services Ltd. for the provision of equipment and labour for the maintenance and 
repair of processing equipment at its two recycling centres, in accordance with 
the existing terms and conditions of its tender awarded in February 2014 until 
November 30, 2017. 

-Carried Unanimously 
11-2016 

D) Bill 151 – Waste Free Ontario Act 2015 

The Chair indicated that there have been Board members advising of the intension to 
make a motion on this report. He read a motion aloud: “That EWSWA Administration 
prepare and submit comments to the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change 
specific to the Essex-Windsor area regarding Bill 151 and that such comments be 
developed with the input from the City of Windsor Administration and County of Essex 
Administration.” 

Discussion took place with regard to the wording of the motion. 

The General Manager explained Bill 151 and its implications. Currently municipalities 
receive funding at 50% of the net cost of the recycling program. The province is 
proposing is that producers be 100% responsible for the lifecycle of the paper and 
packaging they introduce into the market-place. There has been a public consultation 
process and it continues until the end of this month. The reason that this report was 
written was that the organizations that the Authority and Municipalities are members of, 
AMO, MIPC etc. will be providing comments to MOECC. The impact that this legislation 
could have on the Authority budget could be 3, 4 or more years away. For the interim, 
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there will be no changes to funding or the waste diversion programs currently being 
delivered by Essex-Windsor and all other Ontario municipalities.  

The General Manager indicated that the Minister has been very specific that no 
changes will be made to programs during the planning and roll out period. 

Mr. Francis questioned what dollar amount the Authority may be getting if the legislation 
is accepted.  

The General Manager indicated that the municipalities currently operate curbside 
collection and recycling centres. There is no indication from Producers that this will 
continue in the same fashion or capacity of the current system, but no indication that it 
will not either. What is known is that recycling of products will still need to happen. 
Producers would have to engage with municipalities or other 3rd parties to continue that 
service. 

Moved By Ken Antaya 
Seconded By Fred Francis 
That EWSWA Administration prepare and submit comments to the Ministry of the 
Environment and Climate Change specific to the Essex-Windsor area regarding 
Bill 151 and that such comments be developed with the input from the City of 
Windsor Administration and County of Essex Administration; and  
THAT the Board receive the report pertaining to Bill 151 as information. 

-Carried Unanimously 
12-2016 

12. Any Other Business 
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13. In Camera Meeting  

Moved By Ron McDermott 
Seconded By Rino Bortolin 
THAT the Board move into an In-Camera session as permitted under the 
Municipal Act 2001 “Section 239(2) (e) litigation or potential litigation, including 
matters before administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board;”. 

-Carried Unanimously 
13-2016 

Moved By Hilda MacDonald 
Seconded By Fred Francis 
THAT the Board’s In-Camera session stand adjourned at 5:25 PM. 

-Carried Unanimously 
14-2016 

14. By-Laws 

A) 01-2016 Being a By-Law to Confirm the Proceedings of the EWSWA Board Meeting of 
February 2, 2016 

Moved By Rino Bortolin 
Seconded By Ed Sleiman 
THAT By-Law 01-2016, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of the Board 
of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority be given three readings and be 
adopted this 2nd day of February 2016. 

-Carried Unanimously 
15-2016 

15. Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for March 1, 2016. 
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16. Adjournment 

Moved By Hilda MacDonald 
Seconded By Ron McDermott 
THAT the Board stand adjourned at 5:28 PM. 

-Carried Unanimously 
16-2016 

All of which is respectfully submitted. 

Hilary Payne 
Chair 

Ilija Maodus 
General Manager 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 20, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject:  EWSWA 2016 Budget Approval Status 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board that on April 18, 2016 City of Windsor Council 
approved the Authority’s 2016 budget meaning all required approvals have now been received. 

Background 

The Authority’s 2016 budget was approved by the Board at its November 3, 2015 meeting. As 
a part of the approval process the budget was also referred to the City of Windsor and the 
County of Essex Council for their approval. 

On November 18, 2015 Authority Administration attended Essex County Council to present the 
2016 budget, address questions from the council members and to seek approval of the 2016 
EWSWA Budget. Essex County Council resolved to approve the Authority’s 2016 budget at 
that meeting.  

On December 21, 2015 Authority Administration attended City of Windsor Council.  Windsor 
Council was considering a report from the Authority’s General Manager as well as a report 
from their own administration.  Authority Administration did not appear as a delegation during 
the course of the Council meeting.  Windsor Council did not resolve to approve the budget but 
instead resolved as follows: 
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Francis 
Gignac 
That the report of the City Treasurer dated November 16, 2015 entitled “2016 
Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority Operational Plan and Budget” BE 
RECEIVED; and, 

WHEREAS the recommended $290,010 or 5.2% increase to the City of Windsor 
is DEEMED to be excessive;  

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the issue of the city’s share BE 
REFERRED to a joint committee of City and County administration which will 
REPORT to an ad hoc committee of City and County Council members, to BE 
CONVENED by the Mayor of the City of Windsor and the Warden of the County 
of Essex; and further, 

That the ad hoc committee DELIBERATE and REPORT BACK to both City and 
County Councils with recommendations for resolution of this matter. 

Carried. 

Councillors Sleiman and Payne voting nay. 

Discussion 

In February 2016 the Authority’s General Manager was asked to participate in a meeting with 
the CAOs of the County of Essex and City of Windsor.  The objective was for the CAOs to 
better understand the Authority’s operations, finances and proposed 2016 budget. 

The outcome of that February meeting was two reports, one report from Windsor 
administration and a joint report co-authored by City of Windsor and County of Essex CAOs.  
Both reports recommended to Windsor Council that the Authority’s 2016 budget be approved 
as presented and approved by the Board back in November 2015. 

The two reports were included as part of Windsor Council’s Consent Agenda for the April 18, 
2016 meeting.  The reports were approved as part of the overall approval of the Consent 
Agenda.  The Authority’s General Manager was in attendance at the meeting but was not 
required to make a presentation or answer any questions. 

The Conclusion section of the CAOs’ joint report states “…Authority operating costs are 
assessed to be reasonable and in order.  Under current operating conditions, balanced 
budgets will only be attained through increased assessments to municipalities.” 

Authority Budgets for 2017 and Beyond 

In discussions with the Authority Chair he thought it prudent at this time that the Board be 
advised of what the future might hold as far as required contributions from municipalities and 
as matter of information, discussion and planning by Windsor and the 7 County municipalities. 
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The approved allocation to municipalities for 2016 is $11,000,000.  The 10 year forecast 
shows that the 2017 allocation to municipalities will be approximately $11,475,000, an increase 
of 4.3%.  The 10 year forecast projects annual increases on a go-forward basis as well. 

The reasons for the required annual increases result from the following: 

a. Costs naturally rise annually while revenue from non-municipal sources remain at a 
constant level.  Examples of non-municipal revenue include sale of blue box materials, 
tipping fees charged to industrial/commercial customers, funding from stewards for the 
blue box program and other waste diversion programs, etc. 
 

b. Costs rise due to: (i) inflation; (ii) negotiated increases to salaries/wages; (iii) newly 
issued tenders may result in higher pricing (see other report in this agenda); (iv) energy 
price increases. E.g. electricity or fuel 
 

c. Landfill debenture payments increases annually at a rate of 3.6%.  The 2016 amount 
is $4,600,483 while the 2017 amount is $4,765,704.  In the last year of the debenture 
payment in 2031 the amount is $7,800,000. 
 

Use of Rate Stabilization Reserve 

In order to balance the budget the 10 year forecast calculates contributions from the Rate 
Stabilization Reserve in concert with the increases in contributions from the municipalities. 

The Rate Stabilization Reserve has a balance of $12M at the end of 2015.  The plan is to draw 
on that reserve until the balance is approximately $4M. 

 

Unknowns/Risks 

Possible New Waste Diversion Legislation (see also other report as part of this agenda) – 
The new legislation proposes Extended Producer Responsibility meaning that producers and 
generators of the material that is contained within the blue box programs across the Province 
will be liable for the full cost of managing those materials.  Currently, municipalities receive 
funding at a rate of 50% of the net cost.  The 2016 budget includes $2.1M in such funding.  If 
the proposed legislation becomes law it is unclear at this time what financial impact it will have 
on the Authority’s budgets in the years ahead. 

Tipping Fee Revenue from a Large Volume Waste Hauler – The 2016 budget includes 
$700,000 in net revenue from a contract that expires at the end of 2016.  It is unknown at this 
time if the contract will be renewed for 2017. 
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Recommendation 

For the Authority’s information. 

Submitted By 

 

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Joint City County CAOs Report April 4, 2016 

City of Windsor Report March 11, 2016 
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MISSION STATEMENT:  
“Our City is built on relationships – 
city and region – all interconnected, 
together.”  

between citizens and their government, businesses and public institutions, 
mutually supportive, and focused on the brightest future we can create 

LiveLink REPORT #: Report Date: March 11, 2016 

Author’s Name: Tony Ardovini Date to Council: March 29, 2016 

Author’s Phone: 519 253-2300 ext. 2733 Classification #: 

Author’s E-mail: breive@citywindsor.ca 

To: Mayor and Members of City Council 

Subject: 2016 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority Operational Budget 

1. RECOMMENDATION: City Wide: x Ward(s): 

That City Council RECEIVE the report from the Joint Aministrative Committee on the review 
of the Essex Windsor Solid Waste Authourity (EWSWA) Operational Plan and Budget attached 
as Appendicx A; 

That City Council APPROVE the 2016 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (EWSWA) 
Operational Plan and Budget as submitted and attached as Appendix B. 

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
N/A 
 
2. BACKGROUND:  

In accordance with the EWSWA Agreement, both City & County Councils need to approve the 
EWSWA budget once it has been approved by the Authority Board. 

The EWSWA Operational Plan and Budget (Appendix B) was approved by the EWSWA Board 
of Directors and presented to Council during budget deliberations.  While  City staff agreed that 
EWSWA costs, based on current projections, will continue  to increase, they were unable to 
support the recommended  $290,010 or 5.2% increase to the City of Windsor due to Council’s 
previous direction to maintain the same funding as in prior year. 

At its meeting of Dec 21, 2015, City Council adoped the following resolution: 

“B31-2015 THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the issue of the city’s share BE 
REFERRED to a joint committee of City and County administration which will REPORT to an 
ad hoc committee of City and County Council members, to BE CONVENED by the Mayor of the 
City of Windsor and the Warden of the County of Essex; and further, 
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That the ad hoc committee DELIBERATE and REPORT BACK to both City and County 
Councils with recommendations for resolution of this matter.” 

A joint Administrative Committee comprised of the respective CAOs of both the City and the 
County of Essex met with the General Manager of the EWSWA to review their 2016 Budget and 
Cost Structure. The report of the Committee is attached as Appendix A. 

3. DISCUSSION:  

A joint Administrative Committee comprised of the respective CAOs of both the City and the 
County of Essex met with the General Manager of the EWSWA to review their 2016 Budget and 
Cost Structure. The report of the Committee is attached as Appendix A. 

As a result of these further deliberations, and with the knowledge that the 2016 City of Windsor 
budget which was approved without a property tax levy increase and which includes a provision 
for the increased costs related to the EWSWA budget increase, administration is recommending 
that the 2016 EWSWA Budget as approved by the EWSWA Board be approved by City Council.    

Council resolution B31-2015 noted above, called for the report of the joint City/County 
administrative committee to be presented to an ad hoc committee of City and County Council 
who would then deliberate the matter and recommend to each of the two full councils. In the 
interest of expediting a resolution, administration is presenting the recommendations directly to 
City Council as County Council has already approved the budget as presented. Should City 
Council wish to proceed first to an ad hoc committee of both councils, that remains a valid 
option and council can so direct administration.  

4. RISK ANALYSIS: 

Risk identified in the Joint Administration Committee report. 

5. FINANCIAL MATTERS: 

The following table illustrates in 2016, the total amount assessed to the City increased by 
$290,861. A provision for this amount was included in the approved 2016 Operating Budget. 

Table A 

2016 EWSWA 
Levy to City of 

Windsor 

2015 EWSWA 
Levy to City of 

Windsor 

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 

Refuse  $  5,895,375 $  5,605,365 $ 290,010 
Yard Waste  $ 288,600  $ 295,620 $ (7,020) 
Landfill Perp. Care  $ 600,634  $ 592,763 $ 7,871 

Total:  $  6,784,609  $  6,493,748 $ 290,86 

The following table illustrates the variances between the City's Operating Budget and the City's 
portion of the EWSWA Operating Budget. 
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Table B 

2016 City of 
Windsor Budget 

2016 EWSWA 
Levy to City of 

Windsor 

Variance 
Surplus/(Deficit) 

Refuse  $ 5,600,90  $  5,895,375 $ (294,468) 
Yard Waste  $ 266,000  $ 288,600 $   (22,600) 
Landfill Perp. Care*  $ 707,347  $ 600,634 $ 106,713 
Landfill Perp. Care Surplus Transfer*  $ (106,713) 

Total:  $  6,574,254  $ 6,784,609 $ (317,068) 

*As per previous Council approval, part or all of any surplus that remains at year end may be transferred to the 
Landfill #3 - Perpetual Care Reserve Account.  Likewise, any deficit that remains at year end may be eliminated 
through transfers from the Landfill #3 - Perpetual Care Reserve Account.  The set up of the reserve account was 
meant to maintain a consistent budget, while costs fluctuated as a result of the new clay capping at Landfill #3 The 
current balance in Reserve Account 1790 - Landfill #3 - Perpetual Care is a deficit of ($17,777). 

With respect to the Authority's 10-year forecast (2016-2025), City Council should be aware that 
based on current tipping fee levels, the Authority has had to balance its budget by way of 
transfers from its Rate Stabilization Reserve which is not sustainable in the long term. The model 
also shows that assessments to Windsor and the seven County of Essex municipalities will need 
to be increased at a rate of 4.2% annually (even with the substantial draws from the reserve as 
shown below) to begin reducing the amount of the annual budget deficits. Any further deferals 
of recommended increases to municipalities will result in greater annual deficits being funded by 
the Rate Stabilization Reserve. It is also important to point out that onetime funding like reserves 
should be used for paying one time costs and not used to fund ongoing costs. 

Therefore, failing unexpected substantial increases in non-municipal revenues, municipal 
contributions are projected to continue to rise sharply in future years, as shown in the following 
10 year forecast table: 

Projected Annual (Deficits) and Reserve Balance at the End of the Year 

Year Projected 
Assessment to 
Municipalities 
4.2% Increases 

Total Waste 
Management 

Fee Per Tonne 

Projected 
(Deficit) for the 

Year 

Projected Reserve 
Balance End of 

Year 

2016 $11,013,400 $36.44 ($820,783) $10,491,929 
2017 $11,475,963 $40.40 ($930,033) $9,666,815 
2018 $11,957,953 $43.94 ($875,330) $8,888,154 
2019 $12,460,187 $47.11 ($864,287) $8,112,749 
2020 $12,983,515 $50.43 ($846,580) $7,347,296 
2021 $13,528,823 $53.91 ($821,875) $6,598,895 
2022 $14,097,033 $57.03 ($839,826) $5,825,058 
2023 $14,689,109 $61.37 ($750,082) $5,133,226 
2024 $15,306,051 $65.36 ($702,281) $4,482,278 
2025 $15,948,905 $69.54 ($646,050) $3,881,051 

Notes:  Forecast prepared November 2015 for 10 year forecast period 2016-2025 using an annual CPI 

adjustment of 1.82%.
 
Assumptions:   Reserve at $4M at end of 10 year forecast period. 


Recycling revenue at $3.3M annually 
ICI Refuse from Essex-Windsor only 
Contributions to Regional Landfill Perpetual Care Reserve suspended until 2032 
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If the EWSWA Budget is approved as presented there will be a budget impact of $317,068 for 
which Council has provisions for in the approved 2016 Operating Budget. Therefore approving 
the EWSWA budget as requested by their Board is consistent with an overall 2016 City budget 
without any increase in the property tax levy from that approved in 2015. 

6. CONSULTATIONS: 

Manager of Environmental Services 
Manager of Performance Measurement & Financial Administration 
Deputy Treasurer - Financial Planning 
General Manager, EWSWA 
Manager of Finance & Administration, EWSWA 

7. CONCLUSION: 

After further review by the Joint Administrative Committee and EWSWA, City administration is 
recommending approval of the EWSWA Budget, approved by the EWSWA Board.  A provision 
for this increase was included in the 2016 Operating Budget, approved by Council.  City 
adminitration notes that based on the current funding model and assumptions made, annual 
municipal costs will continue to escalate in future years. 

TA 

APPENDICES: 
Appendix A – Report of the Joint Administrative Committee 
Appendix B – EWSWA Administrative Report – Dec 21, 2015 Budget Meeting 

DEPARTMENTS/OTHERS CONSULTED: 
Name: Eli Maodus 
Phone #: 519 776-6441 ext. 1226 
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TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

APPENDIX A

ADMINISTRATIVE REP

City Council and County Council

Joint Administrative Committee - Helga Reidel, Onorio Colucci & Brian Gregg

April 4,20L6

Report on 2016 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (EWSWA) Budget

Recommendation

THAT the 2016 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (EWSWA) Operational Plan and Budget BE APPROVED as submitted

by the EWSWA Board.

Background

tn accordance with the EWSWA Agreement, both City & County Councils need to approve the EWSWA budget once it has

been approved by the Authority Board.

The EWSWA Operational Plan and Budget was approved by the EWSWA Board of D¡rectors and presented to both City

Council and County Council for approval. County Council approved the EWSWA budget at their meeting on November 18,

2015.

Through Council Report #L8O73, Administration presented the proposed EWSWA Budget at the City Council meeting on

December 2'J.,2015 and asked Council for direction. This resulted in Budget Resolution 831-201.5, which reads as folllows:

"THEREFORE BE tT RESOLVED that the issue of the city's share BE REFERRED to a joint committee of City ond County

odministrotion which will REPORT to on ad hoc committee of City ond County Council members, to BE CONVENED

by the Mayor of the City of Windsor qnd the Warden of the County of Essex; and further,

Thot the ad hoc committee DELI/BERATE ond REPORT BACK to both City and County Councils with

recommendotions for resolution of this motter."

At the following EWSWA Board Meeting on February 2,2OL6, the following resolution was adopted by the EWSWA

Board:

"7. THAT the Boord implement the dispute resolution mechanism and that the Board instruct its General

Monoger to communicote with the CAOs for the City of Windsor ond the County of Essex to convene a ioint
committee of City and County odministration under orticle s.(d)(i) of the 7994 ogreement which creoted the

Authority.

2. THAT the Board dpprove its Generol Monoger to communicote with the Mayor of the City of Windsor qnd the

Warden of the County of Essex to convene an od hoc committee of City ond County Council members for the

purpose of considering o report from the ioint administrotion committee. "
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Discussion

Dispute Resolution Mechanism

This is the first time that the d¡spute resolution provisions have been invoked

The 1994 agreement between the City of Windsor and the County of Essex which created the Authority prescribes the
process to be undertaken should one of the councils not approve the budget. According to article 5(d)of the agreement
the process is as follows:

s.(d) The Authority shall report to a regularly scheduled meeting of eoch of the City and County Councils by the
end of eoch year on its activities for that year ond its proposed activities for the following year ond shall
submit an operationol plon and budget as referred to herein and sholl ask for approvol from each of the
City and County Councils. lf both Councils do not opprove of the operotional plan and budget, or ony other
item put before them for decision, the following process will be followed:

(i) The issues in dispute shqll be referred to o joint committee of City ond County odministrotion
convened for this purpose for further review, which joint committee shall thereofter report to on

ad hoc committee of City and County Council members which committee sholl be convened by the
Mayor and the Warden for that purpose;

(äl The ad hoc committee, ofter deliberotion, sholl report bock to City and County Councils with
recommendations for resolution of the dispute. (üil lf the ad hoc committee is not able to resolve

the issues or if the Councils of the City ond County ore not able to agree on the issues before them,
the dispute will then be referred for determination pursuont to the terms of the Arbitrations Act
of Ontario.

As a result of the EWSWA Board resolution, a Joint Administrative Committee consisting of Helga Reidel and Brian Gregg,

CAO's for the City of Windsor and the County of Essex respectively, and Onorio Colucci the City's CFO was convened to
reviewthematter. TheCommittemetwiththeGeneralManageroftheEWSWAtoreviewthebudgetandcostsstructures
of the Authority. A summary of the information is outlined below.

EWSWA Programs

The programs delivered by the Authority to Windsor and the 7 County municipalities can basically be broken out into two,
namely waste disposal and waste diversion.

Waste Disposal/Reeional Landfill

Waste disposal operat¡ng costs (Regional Landfill costs) are relatively inexpensive when compared to alternatives like
incineration or shipping to a private landfill outside the region (like the Region of Peel, for example, does when shipping

their refuse to a private landfill between London and Sarnia).

Further, landfill operatíng costs are comparatively economical when compared to the cost of waste diversion programs

like blue box recycling and compost¡ng.

EWSWA constantly informs and educates their Board and stakeholders alike that diverting waste from landfill disposal
results in increases to the Authority budget and that any reduction in the amount of refuse going to the landfillfor disposal
results in negligible cost savings at the landfill itself.

The most significant cost pressures affecting the Essex-Windsor's Regional Landfill budget are attributable to two principal

factors, namely the host compensation cost and the debenture/financing cost.
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Waste Diversion

The Waste Diversion programs delivered by the Authority are either mandated by conditions contained in the Certificate
of Approval for the Regional Landfill or are directed by the Province through regulations.

These programs include the blue box recycling program, organic composting (leaf and yard waste), household chemical

waste and public education.

Essex-Windsor does not have a kitchen/food waste diversion program which would serve to add further costs to the
Authority's budget. This may change in the future as the Province may mandate that such a program be implemented.

2016 EWSWA Summarv of Expenditures Pie Chart (Schedule A)

This summary lists all the 20L6 budgeted expenditures for the EWSWA. As can be seen, a large component of the budget
¡s for Contracted Costs (32.7%1, Fixed Costs (29.89%) and Non Discretionary Costs (5.36%1, with Billings from Windsor,
County of Essex, and Essex & Kingsville making up another significant component (3t.7%1. These costs represent over
99% of the budget, leaving 572,2OO or 0.32% in discretionary costs.

For the purpose of the summary, the Authority's labour costs were allocated ¡n the costs that are designated as being

recovered by Windsor and County of Essex from the Authority. The Board has no direct control of the rates of pay or
adjustments for salary/wages paid by Windsor or the County of Essex.

List of Expenditure Reductions proposed to the EWSWA Board during 2015 and 2016 Budget Deliberations

During the 2015 budget deliberations, the Board considered a variety of specific cutbacks and, following considerable

debate, did not implement any of the options presented. The following list identifies expenditure reductions presented

to the EWSWA Board:

1. 520,000 - eliminate free distribution of blue boxes

2. S143,700 - request Windsor, Town of Essex and Kingsville to waive grants-in-lieu of taxes

3. SS0,0OO - eliminate the collection of recyclables from non-residential areas in the City of Windsor, namely the
BIAs

4. $20,000 - eliminate the one remaining edition of the "Enviro-Tips" newsletter (there used to be 2 editions per

year)

5. S10,000 - reduce public education promotional material like fridge magnets, reusable bags, pencils/pens, desktop
micro blue boxes, etc

6. S58,500 - eliminate the printing of municipal garbage and recycling collection calendars

7 . Reduce the serv¡ce level at the Windsor and Kingsville Public Drop-Off Depots by reducing the site hours. A cost

savings could not be calculated as there could be a loss in fees revenue which would offset the labour savings.

8. S5,500 - eliminate staff workshops/seminars

9. 55,000 - eliminate budget amount for Board members' conference attendance

L0. S10,500 - eliminate the Gold Star Recycling which is a new 201.6 program designed to acknowledge those "super-
star" households that do an exemplary job of recycling
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During the 2016 budget deliberations, the Board did not engage in a similar process, as a motion to do so was not
supported.

As evidence of previous actions taken by the Board, a brief summary of reductions made in prior year budgets is provided:

L 580,000 - Eliminated foot patrol security at the Windsor Public Drop-Off Depot site and replaced with new gates

and intrusion alarm system

2. 539,000 - Eliminated one of two issues of "Enviro-Tips" newsletter that is distributed directly to each home

3. 565,000 - Reduced advertising/public education costs (The Ministry of the Environment approved the landfill back
in 1995, the landfill actually opened in L997, but a condition of the approval was that waste diversion and public

education activities were required to be implemented)

4. 510,000 - Reduced Saturday hours at the Regional Landfill by 2 hours from 8am-2pm to 9am-1pm

5. 520,000 - lnsurance premium costs reduced by switching from the Cowan program

The Board also discussed accepting waste from outside Essex County in an effort to increase revenue. This topic was

debated at length and a Board resolution was passed not to accept waste from outside of Essex County. lt is important to
note that accepting additional waste would reduce the life of the landfill and that the Authority would have to actively
and continuously solicit this additional waste. The reality is that outside waste is generally available on an ad hoc basis

only. There is little opportunity to secure extended term contracts, thereby making this an unreliable revenue source. ln

addition, there is significant competition from landfills in Michigan.

Authority Administration continues to convey to the Board, and the Board has concurred, that the Authority does not
have expenditure issues but rather a revenue issue(s).

Rate Stabilization Reserve

With respect to the Authority's 10-year forecast (2OL6-2O25I¡, it is important to note that based on current tipping fee
levels, the Authority will balance its budget by way of transfers from its Rate Stabilization Reserve. Therefore, failing
unexpected substantial increases in non-municipal revenues, municipal contributions are projected to continue to rise

consistently in future years. At the end of 2015, the Rate Stabilizatiomn Reserve had a balance of approximately S11.3M.
The 10 Year Forecast Model assumes use of the reserve over the 10 year period to moderate increases required to be

assessed to municipalities. lncreased assessments to municipalities, coupled with the use of the reserve, are expected to
result in annual balanced budgets. The current Forecast Model shows that the Authority will be budgeting annual deficits
over the next 10 year period, offset by corresponding contributionsfrom the Rate Stabilization Reserve. The model also

shows that assessments to Windsor and the seven County of Essex municipalities will need to be increased at a rate of
4.2o/o annually (even with the substantial draws from the reserve as shown below) to move toward an eventual balanced

budget.
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Projected Annual (Deficits) and Reserve Balance at the End of the Year

Year Projected Assessment

to Municipalities

4.2% lncreases

TotalWaste

Management

Fee Per Tonne

Projected (Deficit)

for the Year

Projected Reserve

Balance End of

Year

20L6 s11,013,400 s36.44 (s820,783) 5L0,49r,929

20L7 5LL,47s,963 s40.40 (s930,033) s9,666,915

2018 S11,957,953 s43.e4 (ss75,330) s8,888,154

20L9 5r2,460,L97 547.LL (5864,2871 59,1L2,749

2020 S12,983,515 Sso.¿g (s846,s80) 57,247,296

202L s13,528,823 ss3.91 (s821,87s) S6,598,895

2022 Si.4,097,033 ss7.03 (s839,S26) S5,825,058

2023 S14,689,109 5or.¡z (s7so,o82) 55,133,226

2024 s15,306,051 Sos.go (5702,28L1 54,482,278

2025 S15,948,905 Sog.s+ (s646,050) s3,88L,051

Notes: Forecast prepared November 2075 for 70 yeor forecost period 2016-2025 using an onnual CPI odiustment
of 7.82%.

Assumptions: Reserve at S4M at end of 70 year forecost period.

Recycling revenue at 53.3M annually

lCl Refuse from Essex-Windsor only

Contributions to Regional Landfill Perpetual Care Reserve suspended until 2032

Any further deferals of recommended increases to municipalities will result in greater annual deficits being funded by the

Rate Stabilization Reserve and will deplete the Reserve more quickly than forecast. While the managed use of the Rate

Stabilization Reserve is projected over a ten year period, it is important to emphasize that funding from reserves should

be used finance one-time or extraordinary costs and not be used to fund ongoing operational costs.

Based on current projections, continued contribut¡ons from the Rate Stabilization Reserve are unsustainable and will
eventually result in significant increases well beyond the current projections of 4.2% annual increases to the Total Waste

Management Fee Per Tonne to municipalities.

Risk Analvsis
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Any limits to the measured forecast increases to the Total Waste Management Fee Per Tonne, sizeable reductions in non-

municipal revenues or without significant fundamental operational reductions by the Authority (which may not even be

permitted under the existing Certificate of Approval), the risk of the Authority experiencing financial stress is almost

certain to occur and be of high risk.

The Authority faces continuing challenges in ma¡ntain¡ng a consistent non-municipal revenue stream' This would include

the sale of blue/red box materials along with tipping fees derived from businesses.

Recycling material sales involve fluctuating commodity prices and are subject to supply and demand in the market place

for items such as old newspapers, aluminum cans and cardboard. Revenues in this sector are extremely difficult to predict

given the volatility of the market.

Revenue from tipping fees assessed to businesses has been in decline in recent years as local waste continues to leave the

region due to lower landfill tipping fees in Michigan and at several privately owned landfills in ontario'

While increases to the Total Waste Management Fee Per Tonne mitigates the financial risk to the Authority, it ¡s

acknwledged municipalities will face the challenge of incorporating additional costs into future budgets.

Financial Matters

Discussed throughout the rePort

Conclusion

As noted earlier in the report, Authority operating costs are assessed to be reasonable and in order. Under current

operating conditions, balanced budgets will only be attained through increased assessments to municipalities.

Based on the Joint Adm¡n¡strative Committee's review of the detailed 2016 EWSWA Budget and cost structures, the

comm¡ttee recommends that the 2016 EWSWA budget be approved as recommended by the EWSWA Board.

Onorio Colucci, CAO CitY of Windsor Brian Gregg, CAO CountY of Essex

Schedule:

A - 2016 EWSWA Summary of Budgeted Expenditures
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F¡xed Costs

Landfill Debenture Debt

Loen & lnterest Payments re. Cap¡tal F¡nancing

Contribution to Equipment Replacement Reserye

Rent (Office & Hydro Easement)

5ub.total

4600,500
L,630,740

432,000

36,130

EWSWA

2016 Summary of Expenditures

ønuoded (ists
County Blue Box Collection

Præessing of Blue Box M¿terials

Refuse Hauling Frcm TS f1 & 2 to RL

R&M - Veh¡cles & Equipment
Gr¡nding & Hauling ofOrganics
HeaW EquiÞment Operators @ RL & TS#2

Hydrogeo., Methane & Leachãte Monitoring
Leachate Halling (see Windsorfor Treatment)
Windsor Pub¡ic Drop Off & MHSW - 8in Haul¡ng

Screening, Testing & Bagg¡ng ofOrganics
MHSW D¡sposãl

MHSW Contrad Labour

Security & Fire Contracts - All Locat¡ons

Advertising - Mun¡cipãl Câlendâ6

Legal, Audit & Appraisals

Scale Mtnce
Geoware Maiñtenance ContÊct
Waste Reduct¡on Hauling

Wh¡te G@ds Collection (offset by revenue)

Methane Collection System

R&M - Leachãte Col¡ection Systeñ (Flushing)

Consult¡ng - H&S

Windsor Blue Box Misc.

C¡ty of Windsor Publ¡c Drop Depot Misc.

Sub-total

Nqlriffit¡onou
Fuel

R&M - Bu¡ld¡ng, Roads & 6þúnds (lnc. Janitorial)
Advertísin& Publ¡c Education No Municipal Calendars

lnsuËnce
Utilities
Telephone, Fil, RL Râd¡o A¡rt¡me & lnternet
Blue Boxes (partially offset by revênue from sales)

Office Supplies, Courier, Printing. Weigh scale Rece¡pts & Postage

Deb¡t & Credit card Fees

Staff Exp. (Training, Mileage, Clothing, S€minars, Membe6hip Fees)

Other OpeEting Costs & Êquipment Rentals

Geotextiles/Daily Cwer
Bird ContÞl
Committee Expenses

Safetv Supplies

Shop Supplies

PwerWashing Wastê Tra¡lerArea @ TSS1

Computer & Copier Maintenance & Supplies

Manifests

Sub-total

SU 8.|OÍAL Mß EXPEN T''ruRES

W¡ndsor Billin$ to EWSWA

County of Essx Billins to EWSWA

Twn of E$q and Kinqsville Bill¡n$to EWSWA

OiscGt¡onary Costs

2015

s 6,699,370

s
s
$

5

s
s
5

s
$

)
s
s
s
s
s

s

s
5

s
5

$

s
I
5

s
s
s
s

2,253,OOO

!,497,OOO

831,000

649,600

420,OOO

404000
236,OOO

195,000

L77.500

143,000

130,000

110,000

59,750

58,500

28,350

27,OOO

26,900

25,OOO

22,OOO

L2,OOO

10,000

5,000

3,000

500

319,O00

266,800

188,500

184,000

78,500

36,420
30 000

19,531

14000
13,250

12,000

10,000

8,000

7,400
6,000

3,500

2,000

1,500

1,100

Contrccted Costs

F¡xed Costs

7,334,100
6,699,370
2,a6a,LOa

2,659,74t
!,578,260
7,20L,50L

72,200

2:2,413,2æ

32.72%

29.A9%

12.4O%

7r.47%

7.O4%

536%
o32%

100.m%

counw oÍ Esæx a¡I¡nEs to EwswA
ToM of f5æx ønd Kíngsville 8¡llíngs to EVISWA

Noa4riffitionøry
D¡wet¡úqry

fotul

Summary oI 2O16 Expenditures

oy"
a contreded cosB

¡ Fixed CosB

¡ Windrcr Billingsto EWSWA

. Countyof Esse¡ Bflingsto EWSWA

r TownofEssex and Kingsville Bill¡ngsto

I Non-Disret¡onôry

$

s
s
s
s

s
s

s
s
s
s
s
s
s
s
s
s
s
s

5 7,334,too

5 1,201,s01

5 7s,234,97L

2,868,108

2,659,74r
L,574,260

72,200

TOTAL 2015 EXPENDITURES 5 22,4L3,280Page 27 of 78
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 11, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Michelle Bishop, Manager of Finance and Administration 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject: 2015 Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report 

Purpose 

The purpose of this memo is to present the 2015 audited financial statements as well as 
KPMG’s Auditors’ Report. 

Discussion 

KPMG has issued an “unmodified” audit opinion regarding the 2015 financial statements 
meaning that the statements "…present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Authority as at December 31, 2015 and the results of its operations and changes in net 
debt and cash flows for the year then ended . 

2015 Financial Statements 

The following is a presentation of the major figures included in the 2015 financial statements. 

Statement of Financial Position 

Due from City of Windsor 

The balance of $10,541,567 (2014 - $10,140,346) represents the December 31, 2015 market 
value of proceeds from the settlement of the MFP suit.  These proceeds were made payable to 
the City of Windsor and are being held in an investment account in trust for the EWSWA.  The 
investment instruments are Government of Canada and Province of Ontario stripped coupon 
bonds.  At maturity in 2016 and 2024 the stripped coupon bonds will be used to finance future 
Regional Landfill cell construction. 

Due from City of Windsor, Town of Tecumseh and Town of Lakeshore 

The balance of $1,495,204 represents the December 31, 2015 receivable due from the 3 noted 
municipalities for the project cost to accept and place approximately 1,000,000 m3 of clay from 
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the construction of the Windsor-Essex Parkway at closed Landfill No. 3 in order to thicken the 
cap and modify the side slopes.  The total project cost is estimated at be $2,343,790.  One of 
the objectives of the project is to attempt to inhibit rainwater infiltration which in turn will serve 
to reduce leachate generation. Another objective is to have the site stabilized earlier than 
otherwise possible so that its end-use can be implemented, namely for passive recreation.  
While there is no cost to the Authority to have the clay supplied, hauled and placed at Landfill 
#3 there are costs which must be incurred as a result of disturbing the site and as a result of 
the thicker cap.  Such costs include raising manholes, monitors and pump stations, relocating 
fencing, and re-seeding the entire site with grass seed.  Other significant costs include 
engineering fees to supervise the project and prepare the documents required by the MOE as 
well as the construction of a new leachate haul road and loading station.  

The Authority financed the project cost by borrowing internally from one of its reserves and in 
2013 began charging the 3 municipalities over a 10 year period.  The interest income the 
reserve would have otherwise earned has also been charged to the Landfill #3 budget and 
borne solely by Windsor, Lakeshore and Tecumseh. 

Regional Landfill Post Closure Costs 

The balance of $4,723,822 represents the liability that must be recorded in the Authority’s 
financial statements in accordance with a calculation prescribed by section PS 3270 of the 
Public Sector Accounting Board recommendations.  The liability must be shown whether or not 
funds have been set aside.  The recommendations state that “The liability for closure and post-
closure care begins when the site starts accepting waste.” and “Financial statements should 
recognize a liability for closure and post-closure care as the landfill site’s capacity is used.  
Usage should be measured on a volumetric basis (e.g. cubic metres).” 

The actual reserve balance at December 31, 2015 is $2,121,939 (2014 – $2,079,713).  The 
reserve balance is the result of the Authority’s 2011 Business Review.  The consultant 
recommended that based on the current projection of available landfill capacity the $500,000 
annual contribution to the Regional Landfill Perpetual Care Reserve be suspended until the 
Sunlife debenture payment period is complete in 2031. At that time contributions to the 
Perpetual Care Reserve will be resumed.  Also, that the Authority cap the current Regional 
Landfill Perpetual Care Reserve balance at $2,000,000 until the debenture has been repaid 
and the balance in the reserve be transferred to the Rate Stabilization Reserve.  The Authority 
board adopted these recommendations at the November 2011 Board meeting. 

Net Long Term Liability 

The balance of $66,882,729 represents a debenture due to Sun Life Assurance Company 
Limited on account of the Regional Landfill.  The City of Windsor and the County of Essex are 
jointly liable for this debenture.  The last payment is scheduled for 2031. 

Reserve Funds 

The nature of the Reserves as well as their December 31, 2015 balances are shown on the 
following table.  The $47,368,532 in total reserves forms part of the calculation of the 
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($1,691,847) Accumulated Deficit as found on the Statement of Financial Position and Note 8 
of the financial statements. 

 
Reserve Name Description Balance as at 

December 31, 2015 
Rate Stabilization To manage future years’ tipping fees $12,148,433 

Working Capital To manage cash flow $650,000 

Recycling and Landfill 
Equipment Replacement 

Equipment replacement $5,678,545 

Recycling To be used to fund future years 
recycling operating costs 

$135,000 

Regional Landfill 
Debt Retirement 

To pay Sun Life Debenture for 
Regional Landfill 

$11,574,912 

Regional Landfill To be used for Reg. LF related 
property matters 

$992,784 

Regional Landfill 
Perpetual Care 

To be used once the landfill is 
closed 

$2,121,939 

Regional Landfill 
Future Cell Construction 

For Cells 3, 4, and 5 (strip bonds as 
indicated above) 

$13,259,645 

Landfill #2 
Perpetual Care Accumulated Surplus 

These monies will be used to 
finance 2015 expenses 

$462,487 

Landfill #3 
Perpetual Care Accumulated Surplus 

These monies will be used to 
finance 2015 expenses 

$344,787 

As of December 31, 2015 Total $47,368,532 

Tangible Capital Assets 

The balance of $33,896,269 represents the net book value of Authority assets.  This figure is 
comprised of $69,832,714 in historical costs of the assets less depreciation of $35,936,445.  
Assets include such items as buildings, machinery, heavy equipment, vehicles, land and the 
Regional Landfill. 
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Statement of Operations and Accumulated (Deficit) 

2015 Accumulated Deficit 

The Accumulated Deficit totalling ($1,691,847) at December 31, 2015 represents the 
Authority’s equity or retained earnings and is a function of the net investment in capital, 
unfunded liabilities, long term debt and reserve balances.   

Highlighted in the chart below is a summary comparison of the Authority’s Accumulated 
(Deficit) for 2015: 

Description 2015 Accumulated 
(Deficit) 

2014 Accumulated 
(Deficit) 

Invested in tangible capital assets $22,908,887 $22,928,190 

Long term debt (66,882,729) (67,606,484) 

RL post closure & employee benefit liabilities (5,086,537) (6,571,782) 

Reserves 47,368,532 46,996,391 

Total ($1,691,847) ($4,253,685) 

2015 Operating Deficit 

Operations for 2015 resulted in an excess of revenue over expenditures of $526,820.  An 
operating deficit of ($75,915) had been projected in the 2016 budget document.  This $602,735 
favourable variance is due to the following: 

Description Projected Difference 

Higher than projected ICI tip fees $404,700 

Higher than projected Stewardship Ontario blue box funding 151,400 

Higher than projected municipal revenue 31,300 

Lower than projected recycling revenue (89,900) 

Lower than projected expenditures – Waste Diversion Operations 104,500 

  

Total $602,000 

The 2015 surplus of $526,820 has been transferred to the Rate Stabilization Reserve. 
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Notes To The Financial Statements 

Note 8 Accumulated (Deficit) 

Note 8 includes disclosure of $22,908,887 pertaining to the net book value of tangible capital 
assets.  This figure is derived from the figure shown on the Statement of Financial Position of 
$33,896,269 less $10,987,382.  The $10,987,382 figure represents the amount that must be 
raised by the Authority in future years to retire the debt associated with the acquisition and 
construction of capital items from prior years.  The funds required to finance the acquisition of 
these capital items came from internal borrowing from various Authority reserves.  This was 
done so that external borrowing wouldn’t take place.  The Authority can borrow from its own 
reserves at a better rate of interest than from an external source such as a bank.  The 
$10,987,382 figure is not shown as a separate schedule within the financial statements and is 
therefore presented within this report: 

Description Accumulated Deficit 

Regional Landfill Heavy Equipment (2015) $502,338 

Regional Landfill Cell #3 North (2012) & Cell #4 North (2015) 5,678,632 

Fibre and Container Recycling Centres Processing Equipment (2008) 902,402 

Fibre Recycling Centre Building Addition (2008) 180,195 

Backhoe/Loader – Windsor Depot (2010) 30,557 

Windsor Transfer Station (2006 - 2008) 1,121,277 

Recycling Centre Building (2006 - 2008) 2,239,289 

Compost Pad - Windsor (2006 – 2008, 2012) 332,692 

Total $10,987,382 

Recommendation (s) 

To approve this report, the 2015 financial statements and associated auditors’ report. 

Submitted By 

 

Michelle Bishop, Manager of Finance and Administration 

Attachment (s) 

• 2015 Auditors’ Report 
• 2015 Financial Statements 
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KPMGUP Telephone (519) 251-3500 
618 Greenwood Centre Telefax (519) 251 -3530 
3200 Deziel Drive (519) 251-3540 
Windsor ON NSW 5K8 Internet www.kpmg.ca 
Canada 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority To the Members of the

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31. 2015 and the statements of operations 
and accumulated deficit, change in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform an audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the Entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

KPMG LLP is a C:in3d1an limned h3btl ity panncrsh1p and a member finn of the KPMG 
ne1work of independent member firms affilla1ed with KPMG International Coopcrati,·e 
("KPMG lntemntional"), a SIYtss entity 
KPMG C:lllnda provides scl'\·1ecs to KPMG LLP 

Kl'MG Confidcntinl 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority as at December 31 , 2015, and the results of its operations, 
changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants 

Date of approval 
Windsor, Canada 
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2014 

$ 


28,781,767 

3,350,512 

10,140,346 

1,355,399 

6,603 

43,634,627 

397,383 
2,640,230 

77,581 

365,239 

6,206,543 

67,606,484 

77,293,460 

(33,658,833) 

29,309,883 

95,265 

29,405,148 

(4,253,685) 

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Cash and temporary investments 

Accounts receivable 

Due from City of Windsor (Note 2) 

Due from municipalities (Note 12) 

Other current assets 

2015 

$ 


25,784,538 

3,702,333 

10,541,567 

1,495,204 

6,603 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Due to County of Essex 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Holdbacks payable 

Employee benefits payable (Note 4) 
Regional landfill post closure costs (Note 5) 

Net long term liability (Note 6) 

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Tangible capital assets (Note 7) 

Prepaid expenses and deposit 

TOTAL NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 41,530,245 

33,896,269 

96, 121 

33,992,390 

673,845 

4,022,254 

549,117 

362,715 

4,723,822 

66,882,729 

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 77,214,482 


NET DEBT (35,684,237) 


ACCUMULATED DEFICIT (Note 8) (1,691,847) 

CONTINGENCY (Note 11) 

ESSEX - WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

DECEMBER 31. 2015. WITH COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR 2014 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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Revenue 

Tipping fees 

Sale of recyclable materials 

Recovery of perpetual care costs 

Rent 

Interest income 

Sale of scrap metal - public drop-off depots 

Other 

Stewardship Ontario - recycling operating funding 

Stewardship Ontario - municipal household or special waste 

Ontario Tire Stewardship - tires 

Sale of electronics 

Sale of blue boxes 

Sale of organic material 

Gain (loss) on sale of tangible capital assets 

Total revenue 

Expenses 

Administration 

Realty 

Recycling 

Munlcipal Hazardous or Special Waste 

Waste Reduction and Reuse 

Advertising and Public Education 

Perpetual Care - Landfill Site # 2 

Perpetual Care - Landfill Site # 3 

Regional landfill 

Regional landfill - Initial construction and future cell development 

Windsor Transfer Station #1 

Kingsville Transfer Station #2 

Windsor Public Depot 

Regional landfill debenture payments 

Town of Essex compensation 

Residents compensation 

Post employmenVretirement employee benefits 

Regional landfill post closure costs (Note 5) 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 

Total expenses 

Annual surplus I (deficit) 

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year 

Accumulated deficit, end of year 

Budget 
2015 

$ 
(Note 9) 

14,724,610 

3,258,600 

1,164.430 
144,400 

836.800 

75,000 

386,520 

2,100,000 

155,000 

4,000 

141,000 

25,000 

175,000 

23,190,360 

1,376, 150 

26,730 

6,297,970 

226,000 

978,200 

308,550 

276,700 

1,027,650 

2.579,300 

1,017,620 

570,400 

858,515 

4,440,990 

1.474,850 

46,730 

2,687,773 

24,194,128 

(1,003,768) 

Actual Actual 
2015 2014 

$ $ 

15,429,295 

3,109,693 

1,014,430 

144,365 
931,793 

69,691 

598,351 

2,251,398 

179,678 
3,803 

138,101 

33,872 

167,092 
60,150 

24,131,712 

1,310,383 

43,741 

6,237,462 
255,079 

1,038,673 

277,541 

210,477 

600,768 
2,199,448 

(723,755) 

938,299 

595,357 

823,242 

4,912,882 

1,611,889 

35,860 

(2,524) 

(1,482, 721) 

2,687,773 

21,569,874 

2,561,838 

!4,253,685) 

(1,691,847) 

14,480,273 

3,333,726 

1,137,980 

144,365 

1,199,534 

77,134 

490,574 

2,201,635 

173,396 

3,857 
176,439 

30,179 

233,625 

!1,829) 
23,680,888 

1,295,633 

28,064 

6, 181,313 
266,226 

925,444 

265,219 

220,474 

726,484 

2,374,605 

(462,430) 

902,747 

574,237 

853,175 

4,691,954 

1,467,545 

40,794 

3,895 

2,591,312 

2,573,525 

25,520,216 

(1,839,3281 

!2,414,3571 

(4,253,685) 

ESSEX· WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, WITH COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR 2014 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement 
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BUDGET 2015 
$ $ 

(Nata 91 

Annual surplus I (deficit) (1,003,768) 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (7,993,800) 
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,687,773 
(Gain) loss on sale of tangible capital assets 
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 

(6,309,795) 

Acquisition of prepaid expenses and deposits 
Use of prepaid expenses and deposits 

Change in net debt (6,309,795) 

Net debt, beginning of year (33,658,833) 

Net debt, end of year (39,968,628) 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement 

2,561,838 

(7,507,159) 
2,687,773 

(60,150) 
293,150 

(2,024,548) 

(96,121) 
95,265 

(2,025,404) 

(33,658,833) 

(35,684,237) 

2014 
$ 

(1 ,839,328) 

(440,297) 
2,573,525 

1,829 
421 

296,150 

(95,265) 
85,828 

286,713 

(33,945,546) 

{331658,833} 

ESSEX - WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, WITH COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR 2014 
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Cash provided by (used in): 

Operation Activities 

Annual surplus I (deficit) 

Items not involving cash 

Amortization of tangible capital assets 

(Gain) loss on sale of tangible capital assets 
Employee benefits payable 

Regional landfill post closure costs 

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities 

Accounts receivable 
Due from City of Windsor 
Due from municipalities 
Prepaid expenses and deposits 

Due to County of Essex 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Holdbacks payable 

Net change In cash from operating activities 

Capital Activities 

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets 
Net change In cash from capital activities 

Financing Activities 

Decrease in net long term liability 

Net change In cash from financing activities 

Net change In cash and temporary invesbnents 

Cash and temporary invesbnents, beginning of year 

Cash and temporary lnvesbnents, end of year 

Cash and temporary invesbnents consist of: 

Cash 
Temporary investments 

2015 

$ 

2,561,838 

2,687,773 
(60,150) 

(2,524) 

(1,482,721) 

(351,821) 
(401,221) 

(139,805) 
(856) 

276,462 
1,382,024 

471,536 
4,940,535 

293,150 

(7,507, 159) 
(7,214,009) 

(723,755) 

(723,755) 

(2,997 ,229) 

28,781,767 

25,784,538 

23,066,475 

2,718,063 
25,784,538 

2014 

$ 

(1,839,328) 

2,573,525 

1,829 

3,895 
2,591,312 

37,410 
(685,613) 

(164,532) 
(9,437) 
4,990 

(417,619) 
14407 

2,110,839 

421 
(440,297) 

(439,876) 

(462,430) 

(462,430) 

1,208,533 

27,573,234 

28,781,767 

26,115,359 

2,666,408 
28,781,767 

ESSEX - WINDSOR SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015, WITH COMPARATIVE INFORMATION FOR 2014 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statemenl 
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1 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (the "Authority") is a Joint Board of Management created by 
the Corporation of the County of Essex (the "County") and the Corporation of the City of Windsor (the 
"City") pursuant to an agreement dated May 18, 1994, (the "EWSWA Agreement") to establish, operate 
and manage, among other things, the Regional Landfill, recycling and waste diversion programs. 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices: 

The financial statements of the Authority are prepared in accordance with accounting policies prescribed 
by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. 

Basis of accounting: 

(i) Accrual: 

The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenue as it is earned and is measurable, 
Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and are measurable as a result of the 
receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal obligation to pay. 

(ii) Non-financial Assets: 

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use 
in the provision of services. They generally have useful lives extending beyond the 
current year and are not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

(iii) Tangible Capital Assets: 

Tangible Capital Assets are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 
attributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The 
cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land and landfill sites, 
are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Asset Classification & Amortization Schedule 

Classification Useful Life (Years) 
Buildings 15-20 
Machinery & Equipment 5-15 
Vehicles 7-10 
Land Improvements 10-20 
Heavy Machinery 7-10 
Office Equipment 10 

The Regional Landfill has an estimated service capacity of 8,000,000 tonnes and is being 
amortized using the units of production method based on capacity used during the year. 

Land has an infinite life and accordingly is not amortized. 
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2 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Reporting Practices (continued): 

(iv) Landfill closure and post closure liability: 

The liability for closure and post closure care of the Regional Landfill is recognized over 
the term of operation of the landfill, beginning when the site first accepted waste and will 
be fully recognized when the site stops accepting waste. The change in the liability and 
annual expense is determined pro-ratably based on the percentage of cumulative cubic 
metres used over total estimated cubic metres of capacity, to estimated total closure and 
post-closure expenses, less expenses previously recognized. 

The Authority also monitors two ctosed landfills. Under agreements with five local 
municf palities, the Authority can recover the post closure care costs from the local 
municipalities in the same proportion as the waste deposited in the landfill. The local 
municipalities bear the cost of monitoring the closed landfills and therefore the liability for 
post closure costs have not been included in the liability for landfill post closure costs. 

(v) Employee future benefit obligations: 

The Authority has adopted the accrued method of accounting for employee future 
benefits as required by the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. The cost of 
future benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit 
method prorated on service and assumptions of mortality and termination rates, 
retirement age and expected inflation rate. Actuarial gains and losses on the accrued 
benefit obligation arise from differences between actual and expected experience and 
from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to determine the accrued benefit 
obligation. Actuarial gains and losses for non-pension post-retirement benefits are 
amortized over the average remaining service period of active employees, which is 13 
years. Actuarial gains and losses for post-employment benefits are fully recognized in 
the year they arise. 

(vi) Use of estimates: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the valuation of accounts receivable, the valuation of 
employee benefits, the carrying value of Regional Landfill post-closure costs and the 
carrying value of tangible capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(vii) Future accounting changes: 

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015 all governments will be 
required to adopt PSAB Section 3460, Financial Instruments and Section 2601, Foreign 
Currency Translation. Section 3460, provides guidance on how to account for financial 
instruments including derivatives. Section 2601, provides guidance on how to account for 
and report transactions that are denominated in foreign currency in government financial 
statements 
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Market Value Market Value 
2015 2014 

$ $ 
Province of Ontario Stripped Coupon Bond 
Maturing December 12, 2016- $5,961, 150 5,918,826 5,807,949 

Government of Canada Stripped Coupon Bond 
Maturing December 1, 2024 - $5,317,650 4,622,633 4,332,289 

RBC Dominion Securities -Cash 108 108 
$10,541 ,567 $10,140,346 

3 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

2. Due from City of Windsor: 

As more fully described in note 6, the Authority received certain proceeds and investments in settlement 
of certain litigation. These investments are held in trust by the City on behalf of the Authority and consist 
of the followlng: 

3. Pension Agreements 

The Authority contributes to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS) on behalf of 
27 employees. OMERS is a multi-employer, defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the 
retirement benefit to be received by employees based on their length of service and earnings. However, 
as OMERS does not segregate its pension assets and liabilities information by individual employer, there 
is not sufficient information to enable the Authority to account for the plan as a defined benefit plan. The 
plan has been accounted for as a defined contribution plan. 

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2015 was $183,952 (2014 - $169,560) for current service. 
Contributions in the current year have been included as an expense within the statement of operations 
and accumulated deficit. 

4. Employee Benefits Payable 

Employee future benefit obligations are future liabilities of the Authority to its employees and retirees for 
benefits earned but not taken as at December 31, 2015 and consists of the following: 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Post retirement benefits 294,485 285,618 
Post employment benefits 25,910 34,000 
WSI B future benefits 42,320 45,621 

$362,715 $365,239 

The Authority measures its post retirement and post employment benefit obligation for accounting 
purposes as at December 31 each year and consists of the following: 

2015 2014 
Discount rate 4.75% 4.75% 
Medical trend rate 

Initial 5.667% 6.7% 

Ultimate 4% 4% 


Dental trend rate 4% 4% 


The medical trend rate has an initial rate of 5.667% but reduces by 0.333% per year to 4% in 2020. 
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2015 2014 
$ $ 

Accrued benefit liability at the beginning of the year 365,239 361,344 
Current service cost 17,757 14,525 
Interest 9,727 10,650 
Amortization of actuarial gains (23,650) (4,462) 
Expected benefit payments (6,358) (16,818) 
Accrued benefit liability at the end of the year 362,715 365,239 
Unamortized net actuarial gains (114,593) (119,649) 
Obligation for benefits 248,122 245,590 

4 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

Information about the Authority's future obligation with respect to post retirement and employment 
benefits are as follows: 

5. Regional Landfill Post-Closure Costs: 

The Statement of Financial Position reflects a balance of $4,723,822 (2014 - $6,206,543) for Regional 
Landfill post-closure care expenses, representing an estimate of expenses that would otherwise be 
incurred had the Regional Landfill ceased receiving waste as of December 31, 2015. This liability for 
perpetual care is to be recognized over the term of the Regional Landfill operation, the balance of which 
is currently estimated to be an additional 35 years, based on past and projected waste levels. The site 
has an approximate capacity of 12.2 million cubic metres, of which 4.8 million has been consumed to 
December 31 t 2015. The nature of post-closure expenses will relate to monitoring, hauling and treating 
leachate; monitoring ground and surface water; monitoring gas and maintenance of drainage system and 
final cover. 

It is being estimated that by the time the Regional Landfill ceases operating in 2050, $86 million will be 
required for post-closure care for a period of 40 years subsequent to its closure, which is management's 
current best estimate of the period such care will be necessary. 

The Authority has established a reserve to help fund these future expenses, and at December 31, 2015, 
the balance in this reserve fund approximated $2.122 million (2014 - $2.080 million). 

6. Net Long-Term Liability: 

In July 2005, the County, City and Authority (the "Plaintiff') settled a legal action commenced in the 
Ontario Superior Court of Justice against MFP Financial Services, Leasing-Infrastructure Financing Trust 
1 ("LIFT") and others in which the Plaintiffs had alleged that certain of the defendants had fraudulently 
and negligently misrepresented the rate of interest payable by the Plaintiffs in respect of a head lease and 
sublease intended to be a loan to finance certain costs incurred by the Authority to develop the Regional 
Landfill and pay the costs of future landfill expansions. 

Under the terms of the mediated and Court approved settlement, LIFT assigned its rights under the 
original head lease which the Court ruled was a loan from LIFT to the County and City, to Sun Life 
Assurance Company Limited ("Sun Life"). Sun Life restructured the loan, in favour of the debenture in the 
amount of $62,808,331, bearing interest at 6.427% per annum, issued by the County, on behalf of the 
County and the Authority. The County and the City are jointly liable for the debenture, which provided for 
principal and interest payments on January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencing January 15, 2006 
and maturing on July 31, 2031. Total interest over the term of the debenture will aggregate $88,454,959. 
Other significant terms and conditions of the settlement are as follows: 

(a) 	 Cash proceeds of $5,728,000 held by LIFT on account of a payment previously owing 
under the head lease were distributed to the County and City and used to retire certain 
indebtedness incurred in prior years by the Authority with respect to Regional Landfill 
expenses. 

Page 42 of 78



2015 2014 
$ $ 

Debenture payable 64,949,955 65,652,795 
Accrued Interest 	 1,932,774 1,953,689 

$66,882,729 $67,606,484 


5 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

(b) 	 Investments held by another defendant with a book value of $10,195,743 at the date of 
settlement were distributed to the County and the Authority. At their respective maturity 
dates, these investments will be considered as further advances by LIFT as provided 
under the original head lease agreement. 

(c) 	 Payment of $7, 146,880 by LIFT to the County and City, which was used, along with 
interest earned thereon, towards payments otherwise due with respect to the Sun Life 
debenture during the period commencing January 15, 2006 and ended on January 15, 
2008. Those proceeds were intended to effectively reduce the original cost of borrowing 
included in the head lease and sub-lease during this period. As part of the agreement, 
no other payments with respect to the debenture are payable during this timeframe. 

The investments noted in paragraph (b) above are currently being held by the City in trust 
for the Authority. 

(d) 	 Payment of $2,400,000 by MFP Financial Services Limited on account of costs of the 
legal action incurred by the Plaintiffs. 

Net Long term liability consists of: 

Under the terms of the debenture agreement, no principal repayments were required until 
2013 and the excess of interest otherwise payable over the actual amount of the 
debenture payments due annually was capitalized as part of the debenture payable. 
Principal repayments began in 2013. 

Principal payments due over the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 

2016 $977,538 
2017 $1,274,612 
2018 $1,595,606 
2019 $1,942,173 
2020 $2,316,072 
2021 and thereafter $56,843,954 
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Regional Machinery OfficeLand Building and Heavy ComputerLandfill Laml Vehicles and Furniture& Total Improvements Improvements Machinery SystemsConstruction Equipment Equipment 

Cost 

Balance, beginning of year $ 32,970,141 $ 4,450,709 $ 3,358,017 $ 12,633,294 $ 505,555 $ 3,822,596 $ 5,670,278 $22,645 $144,437 $ 63,577,672 

Additions - - 65,258 - - 1,348,896 78,304 14,735 - 1,507,193 

Disposals - - - - - (1,199,292) (52,825) - - (1,252, 117) 

Assets under construction 5,999,966 - - - - - - - - 5,999,966 

Balance, end of year $ 38,970,107 $4.450,709 $ 3,423,275 s 12,633,294 s 505,555 s 3,972,200 $ 5,695,757 $ 37,380 $144,437 $ 69,832,714 

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance, beginning of year $ 17,697,928 - s2,451,593 $7,070,530 $ 433,361 $ 2,588,225 $ 3,894,825 s 16,981 $ 114,346 $ 34,267,789 

Disposals - - - - - (966,292) (52,825) - - (1,019, 117) 

Amortization Expense 1,186,511 - 76,516 518,372 16,334 356,007 507,653 1,403 24,977 2,687,773 

Balance, end of year s 18,884,439 - $ 2,528,109 $7,588,902 s 449,695 s 1,977,940 $ 4,349,653 s 18,384 $139,323 $ 35,936,445 

Net Book Value, end of year $ 20,085,668 s4,450,709 $ 895,166 s 5,044,392 s55,860 s 1,994,260 s 1,346,104 s 18,996 s 5,114 s 33,896,269 

6 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

7. Tangible Capital Assets: 

2015 
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Regional Machinery OfficeLand Building and Heavy ComputerLandfill LaRd Vehicles and Furniture& TotalImprovements Improvements Machinery SystemsConstruction Equipment Equipment 

Cost 

Balance, beginning of year $ 32,847,183 $4,450,709 $ 3,358,017 $ 12,633,294 $469.456 $ 3,560,246 $5,677,070 $ 22,645 $144,437 $ 63, 163,057 

Additions - - - - 36,099 267,350 13,890 - . 317,339 

Disposals - - - - - (5,000) (20,682) - . (25,682) 

Assets under construction 122,958 - - - - - - - - 122,958 

Balance, end of year $ 32,970,141 $4.450,709 $ 3,358,017 $ 12,633,294 $ 505,555 s 3,822,596 $5,670,278 $ 22,645 $144,437 $ 63,577,672 

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance, beginning of year $ 16,786,840 - $ 2,296,024 $ 6,510,804 $418,832 s 2,252,133 $ 3,366,337 $ 16,315 $ 70,411 $ 31,717,696 

Disposals - - - - - (2,750) (20,682) - - (23.432) 

Amortization Expense 911,088 - 155,569 559,726 14,529 388,842 549,170 666 43,935 2,573,525 

Balance, end of year $ 17,697,928 - $ 2,451,593 $ 7,070,530 $433,361 $ 2,588,225 $ 3,894,825 $ 16,981 s114,346 $ 34,267,789 

Net Book Value, end of year $ 15,272,213 $4,450,709 $ 906,424 $ 5,562,764 $ 72,194 $1,234,371 $1,775,453 $5,664 $ 30,091 $ 29,309,883 

7 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

7. Tangible Capital Assets (continued): 

2014 
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DEFICIT 

Invested in tangible capital assets 

Unfunded 

Net long-term liability 

Landfill post-closure costs 

Employee benefits 

Total deficit 

RESERVES 

Equipment Replacement 

Rate Stabilization 

Working Capital 

Regional Landfill 

Regional Landfill Perpetual Care 

Regional Landfill Debt Retirement 

Regional Landfill Future Cell Construction 

Landfill 2 Perpetual Care 

Landfill 3 Perpetual Care 

Recycling 

Total reserves 

Total accumulated deficit 

2015 
$ 

22,908,887 

(66,882,729) 
(4,723,822) 

(362,715) 

(49,060,379) 

5,678,545 
12,148,433 

650,000 
992,784 

2,121,939 
11,574,912 
13,259,645 

462,487 
344,787 
135,000 

47,368,532 

2014 

$ 
22,928,190 

(67 ,606,484) 
(6,206,543) 

(365,239) 

(51,250,076) 

6,216,250 
11,484, 179 

650,000 

990,644 
2,079,713 

11,862,247 
12,806,769 

347,964 
256, 125 
302,500 

46,996,391 

(1,691,847) (4 ,253,685) 


8 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

8. Accumulated Deficit: 


Accumulated deficit consists of individual fund surpluses (deficits} and reserves as follows: 
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10. Expenses by Object: 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Operating goods and services 9,886,409 14,397,423 
Regional Landfill financing costs 4,912,882 4,691,954 
Municipal and residential compensation 1,647,749 1,508,339 
Salaries, wages and employees benefits 2,435,061 2,348,975 
Amortization 2,687,773 2,573,525 

21,569,874 25,520,216 

Revenue: 
Operating Budget 
Capital Budget 

Less: 
Transfers from other funds 

Total Revenue 

Budget Amount 

$ 21,506,355 
7,993,800 

(6,309,795) 
$ 23, 190,360 

Expenses: 
Operating Budget 
Capftal Budget 

Less; 
Capital Expenses 

Total Expenses 

$ 24, 194, 128 
7,993,800 

(7 ,993,800) 

Annual Deficit ($ 1,003, 768) 

11. Contingency: 

During the normal course of operations, the Authority may be subject to various legal actions. The 
settlement of these actions, if any, is not expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of 
the Authority. 

12. Due from Municipalities: 

The Statement of Financial Position reflects a balance of $1,495,204 (2014 - $1,355,399) due from the 
City of Windsor, the Town of Lakeshore and the Town of Tecumseh for the costs relating to the clay 
capping project at closed Landfill 3. The Authority manages the perpetual care of closed Landfill 3 in 
Lakeshore and charges back the 3 municipalities for all expenditures based on the percentage of waste 
originally deposited in the landfill when it was operational. The clay capping project cost for 2013 to 2016 
is estimated to be $2,343,790. The Authority is financing the project cost by borrowing internally from one 
of its reserves and charging the 3 municipalities over a 1 O year period. The interest income the reserve 
would have otherwise earned will also be charged to the Landfill 3 budget and borne solely by Windsor, 
Lakeshore and Tecumseh. 

9 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

9. Budget Data: 

The audited budget data presented in these financial statements is based upon the 2015 operating and 
capital budgets approved by the Authority on February 3, 2015. Amortization was not contemplated on 
development of the budget and, as such, has been included based on the actual 2015 figure. The chart 
below reconctles the approved budget to the budget figures reported in these consolidated financial 
statements. 
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10 Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2015 

13. Adoption of new accounting policy: 

The Authority adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Standard PS 3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites 
effective January 1, 2015. Under PS 3260, contaminated sites are defined as the result of contamination 
being introduced in air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical, organic, or radioactive material or live 
organism that exceeds an environmental standard. This Standard relates to sites that are not in 
productive use and sites in productive use where an unexpected event resulted in contamination. The 
Authority adopted this standard on a retroactive basis and there were no adjustments as a result of the 
adoption of this standard. 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 19, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Michelle Bishop, Manager of Finance and Administration 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject: January to March 2016 – Three Month Operations Financial Review 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to present a three month financial review of the operating costs and revenue. 

Background 

In November 2015 the Board was presented with a report with the findings and 
recommendations from an internal audit undertaken by Price Waterhouse Coopers LLC (PwC) 
of certain Authority processes and controls on behalf of the City of Windsor.   

A recommendation regarding the frequency of financial reporting was received from PwC.  In 
the past the Board received financial updates at 6 months, at 9 months with the budget 
document and at 12 months with the year end audit report.  The Board also received reports 
from Administration throughout the year on various financial matters.  Additionally, PwC 
recommended that the Board receive a 1st quarter report. 

Discussion 

Historically the delivery of material for disposal at Authority depots is much lower during the 
period of January to March than other months of the year.  This creates a challenge for 
Administration to compare actual first quarter results to budget estimates. Administration has 
therefore only included in this report items that have a material variance to budget or are 
significant in nature such as Municipal revenue and the quarterly recycling revenue. 
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Operating Revenue 

Municipal Tip Fee Revenue – Refuse 

Municipal tip fee revenue is on track compared to prior year results. For the three month period 
January-March 2016 a total of 21,695 tonnes were received for disposal compared to 20,332 
tonnes delivered during the same period in 2015.  

Municipal Tip Fee Revenue – Organics 

Most municipal organic programs do not operate in the winter months. 

Industrial/Commercial/Institutional (IC&I) Tip Fee Revenue – Landfilled Material 

Revenue from IC&I customers is approximately $226,000 higher (net of host compensation) 
than anticipated in the first quarter of 2016 due to unbudgeted contaminated soil material 
delivered from a local construction company. 

Included annually in the Authority’s ICI revenue budget is approximately $100,000 for 
“episodic” or one time waste disposal revenue from local construction projects.  Therefore, as 
of March 2016 there is a $126,000 favourable variance in this account. 

Industrial/Commercial/Institutional Tip Fee Revenue – Non-Landfilled Material 

No significant variances have been identified.   

Sale of Recyclable Goods 

Some recyclable material commodity prices, in particular plastics, have dropped during the first 
quarter of 2016.  Therefore, average revenue from the sale of recyclables is ($6.30) per tonne 
less than budgeted for the three month period. Tonnage received is also under budget by 440 
tonnes (5,720 actual tonnes vs. 6,160 budgeted tonnes).  Actual revenue for the period was 
$696,335 compared to budgeted revenue of $788,750. This equates to an unfavourable 
variance of ($92,415) which is due to the aforementioned lower tonnage and lower price per 
tonne. 

The following table contains the 2016 budget figures, year to date and current prices per tonne 
for each recyclable material.  
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Material  2016 Budget Price 
Per Tonne 

January to March 
Average Price 

April 15 Sales Price 

Newspaper $80 $88 $91 

OCC (Cardboard) $118 $134 $124 

Boxboard/Hardpack $83 $93 $90 

Clear Glass $35 $36 $35 

Tin/Steel $200 $150 $215 

Fine Paper $200 $220 $220 

Aluminum $1,800 $1,733 $1,676 

PET – Plastic $383 $259 $279 

HDPE – Plastic $630 $570 $599 

Polycoat $128 $135 $115 

Mixed Plastics $133 $125 $119 

Mixed Metals $130 $100 $142 

 

Operating Expenditures 

No significant variances have been identified during the first 3 months of 2016. 

Recommendation 

That this report be received for information purposes. 

Submitted By 

 

Michelle Bishop, Manager of Finance and Administration 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 20, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject: Request for Proposals for Rental and Use of Vacant Farmlands 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board of the outcome of the Request for Proposals for 
Rental and Use of Vacant Land and to recommend that the lands be leased to Christopher Malott 
Farming Enterprises Inc. (CMFE) for an amount of $276 per acre for the current available 
acreage of 824 acres.  Total annual rent would therefore be $227,424.  The term would be for five 
years for the period November 1, 2016 – October 31, 2021.  The successful RFP respondent 
proposed an extension clause of three separate one-year periods upon agreement of both the 
Authority and the respondent.  Administration concurs with this proposal. 

Background 

The subject lands are in the vicinity of the Essex-Windsor Regional Landfill.  They are currently 
being leased to the same successful respondent at a rate of $175.20 per acre ($144,365 per 
year) and have been since November 1, 2011.  The current lease expires on October 31, 2016. 

Discussion 

An RFP was issued on March 4, 2016 with submissions due on April 8, 2016.  In order to receive 
as much of a response as possible to the RFP, the document was advertised, mailed and 
distributed as follows: Windsor Star, County newspapers, Ontario Farmer newspaper, area 
farmers, Agris Co-operative Ltd., Essex County Federation of Agriculture, EWSWA website, 
County of Essex website and Ontario Greenhouse Vegetable Growers.  There were five 
responses, all from local area farmers.   

There was no public opening of the RFP submissions and some of the respondents have 
requested confidentiality with their submitted price. 

The price proposed by Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. of $276 per acres was the 
highest of the five submissions received by the Authority. 
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Since the County of Essex is technically the owner of the subject lands the County will also be 
party to the lease agreement. 

Financial Impact 

Rental Revenue will increase in 2017 to $227,424 from the 2016 Rental Revenue amount of 
$144,365. 

Recommendations 

1. THAT the Board accept administration’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with 
Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. for a five year term commencing on 
November 1, 2016 and ending on October 31, 2021 at a rate of $276 per acre with the 
option for three separate one-year extensions upon mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

2. THAT since the County of Essex is the owner of the subject lands that a report be 
brought before County Council recommending that the County of Essex be a party to 
the lease between the Authority and Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. 

 
Submitted By 

  

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 21, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject:  Closed Landfill # 3 Clay Capping Project and Benefits 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board that the Clay Capping Project undertaken at 
closed Landfill #3 for the four year period 2012-2015 is now substantially complete and further 
that the project has attained the objective of substantially reducing the amount of leachate 
being generated which has translated into significant cost savings to the three municipalities 
responsible for its perpetual care, namely Windsor, Tecumseh and Lakeshore. 

Background 

Before 1997 Essex-Windsor had three active landfill sites serving the region’s municipalities. 

Landfill #1(County Rd. 18, Colchester North) became the eventual site of the current Regional 
Landfill in 1997. 

Landfill #2 (Leamington/Kingsville Townline) closed in 1993 with a part of that site now being 
used and known as Transfer Station #2/Public Depot. 

Landfill #3 (Puce Rd., Maidstone) closed to the receipt of refuse in June 1997 at which time the 
Regional Landfill began receiving refuse. 

Landfill #3 closed before its full capacity was realized.  This resulted in less than optimal 
slopes and grades, meaning more leachate was being generated.  This in turn resulted in 
higher perpetual care costs for the hauling and treatment of the high levels of leachate. 

Discussion 

In 2010 and 2011 during the early discussions of the Essex-Windsor Parkway project it was 
identified by the Authority’s Waste Disposal Manager that the project would generate large 
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volumes of clay that would need to managed and that closed Landfill #3 could make good use 
of the clay to remedy the slopes, grades and leachate issues. 

For the four year period 2012-2015 approximately 1.5M cubic metres of clay were hauled and 
placed at closed Landfill #3.  The resulting thickening of the landfill’s cap along with modified 
slopes and grades have shown early signs of success in reducing the amount of rainwater 
permeating through the landfill and creating leachate. 

Leachate hauling costs have declined steadily from $559,000 in 2011 to $119,000 in 2015. 

Cost 

The total cost of the project was $2.3M.  To assist Windsor, Tecumseh and Lakeshore with 
financing the project, the Authority has paid the full cost and will recover the amount by 
assessing back to the three municipalities over the ten year period 2013-2022 at approximately 
$230,000 per year. 

Budget Impacts 

The regular operating budget of the Authority is not impacted by the annual savings realized by 
this project since the Authority recovers fully from Windsor (91.84%), Tecumseh (3.40%) and 
Lakeshore (4.76%) the costs associated with the perpetual care of Closed Landfill #3.  The 
same circumstances apply in regards to Closed Landfill #2 where all costs are recovered from 
Kingsville and Leamington. 

That being said it is the obligation of the Authority, as custodian of those closed landfills, to 
manage as effectively as possible the costs associated with their perpetual care. 

The chart below shows the leachate levels and cost of hauling the leachate, for proper 
treatment, before and after the clay capping project:  

Year Leachate Volume 
In Tonnes 

Cost to Haul Leachate from 
Landfill #3 for Treatment 

Notes 

2004 100,101 $392,938  
2005 104,654 $413,288  
2006 94,324 $378,804  
2007 72,468 $298,756  
2008 87,745 $351,627  
2009 91,172 $368,153  
2010 47,540 $178,504  
2011 131,249 $559,189  
2012 87,638 $375,498 YEAR 1 OF PROJECT 
2013 67,381 $272,670 YEAR 2 OF PROJECT 
2014 48,622 $201,256 YEAR 3 OF PROJECT 
2015 30,620 $118,610 FINAL YEAR OF PROJECT 

2016- 3 MTHS 5,995 $24,262  
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Recommendation 

For the Authority’s information. 

Submitted By 

 

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 22, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject:  Closed Landfill # 3 Technical Review Committee and Compensation Fund 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board that the work of the Landfill #3 Technical 
Review Committee is complete in regards to the administration of the Compensation Fund for 
the residents who suffered adverse effects from the hauling and placing of clay from the 
Parkway Project. 

Background 

The Environmental Compliance Approval for closed Landfill #3 contains Conditions 34 and 35 
as follows: 

Condition 34 (full text, emphasis added) 

Condition 34 in ECA dated January 30, 1990, is hereby amended to re-constitute the 
membership structure of the Technical Review Committee, such that the new Condition 34 
reads as follows: 

(a) A Technical Review Committee made up of a representative from each of the Essex-
Windsor Solid Waste Authority, Ministry of the Environment, Town of Lakeshore, City of 
Windsor and a Residents' Representative appointed by the Town of Lakeshore, shall be re-
constituted, and shall have charge for the administration of compensation process for 
any claim submitted in respect of adverse effect suffered due to impacts related to 
the landfill site. 

(b) The TRC shall develop Terms of Reference in consultation with interested members 
of the affected public through their representatives on the TRC, and as amended from time 
to time according to appropriate amending procedures. A copy of the Terms of Reference 
shall be provided to the District Manager. 
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Condition 35 (partial text, emphasis added) 

The County shall include in its budget each year a total of $25,000.00 (to be known as the 
“Fund”) which shall be used to provide compensation, on a no-fault basis, to any person 
who can establish, to the satisfaction of the fund’s administrator, that such person has suffered 
an adverse effect, as defined in subsection 1.(1) (a) of the Environmental Protection Act, as a 
result of the operation of Landfill #3.  

The administrator of the compensation process shall be the Technical Review Committee 
described in Condition 34. 

Terms of Reference Article 15 

The Terms of Reference for the Technical Review Committee, as referenced in Condition 
34(b) of the ECA, included Article 15 as follows: 

15. Current Mandate of the Technical Review Committee 

That the Technical Review Committee restrict its mandate at this time solely to the 
review of claims being submitted by property owners related to the current clay capping 
project; and  
 
That upon completion of the current claims evaluation process that the continuation of 
the Technical Review Committee be in turn considered and discussed. 

Resolution 33-2013  
November 8, 2013 

 

Discussion 

The Committee held its first meeting on August 8, 2013 and its last meeting on March 9, 2016. 

The two Committee Chairs during that time period were Board Members Cheryl Hardcastle 
and Ed Sleiman. 

During the Committee’s term they allocated funds pertaining to claims submitted by property 
owners for the years 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015.  The full $25,000 was disbursed for each of 
those four years.  Payments ranged from a low of $100 per property per year to a high of 
$3,800 per property per year. 

At the Committee’s last meeting on March 9, 2016 the Committee resolved as follows: 

The TRC members acknowledge, based on the information provided by Authority 
Administration, that the mandate with respect to the clay capping project is 
complete and that the Committee remain intact to deal with potential issues 
related to future claims of adverse effects at which time a new Terms of 
Reference will be established based on those claims.  
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There are no further meetings of the Landfill #3 Technical Review Committee scheduled since, 
as Article 15 of the Terms of Reference states and as the Committee’s resolution from the 
March 9, 2016 meeting states, the mandate of the Committee is complete since its mandate 
was restricted solely to the clay capping project. 

Recommendation 

For the Authority’s information. 

Submitted By 

 

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 25, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject:  Bill 151 – Waste-Free Ontario Act, 2015 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board that Bill 151 has passed second reading in 
the Provincial legislature and has been referred to the Social Policy Committee for public 
consultations and clause-by-clause hearings beginning April 18. 

Background 

At the Board’s February 2, 2016 meeting a report was presented which informed the Board 
that on November 26, 2015 Minister Glen Murray introduced a bill, the intent of which is to 
enable a shift to a circular economy that would increase resource recovery and waste 
reduction in the Province. The existing programs for Blue Box, used tires, waste electronics, 
and municipal hazardous/special waste (e.g., paints, solvents, batteries, fertilizers, etc.) would 
be included under this Act.  

It is not the intent of the Province, during the debate of the bill or during the potential 
implementation, that the services delivered to residents be interrupted.  Therefore, the 
programs described above such as the blue box recycling program will continue in their current 
form. 

One of the main tenets of the proposed legislation is the concept of expanded/extended 
producer responsibility (EPR) whereby full responsibility would be placed on producers to be 
accountable for their products and packaging at end of life. This producer responsibility 
framework would include recovery targets, standards and reporting requirements applicable to 
all producers, but would provide producers with the flexibility to decide how to meet the 
requirements. 

Discussion 

As mentioned in this report’s Purpose section, Bill 151 has been referred to Committee for 
public consultation.  At the Board’s February 2, 2016 meeting the Board resolved for Authority 
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administration, with input from Windsor and County of Essex administration, to prepare and 
submit comments to the Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change specific to the 
Essex-Windsor area.  Such comments were prepared and submitted.  Attached to this report 
are those comments. 

Budget Impact 

There will be no 2016 or 2017 budget impacts on revenue or expenses if the Bill is enacted. 

Timeframe 

Should the new bill be enacted, the Province is proposing that the full rollout of the legislation 
would take some 3 to 4 years or even longer. 

Future Updates 

The Board will be provided with further updates during the progression of the Bill. 

Recommendation 

For the information of the Authority Board. 

Submitted By 

 

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 

Attachment: Comments on Bill 151 to MOECC February 26, 2016 
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February 26, 2016 
File: Waste Diversion – Bill 151 

Sent By: Submitted electronically via https://www.ebr.gov.on.ca/ERS-WEB-
External/searchComment.do?actionType=add&noticeId=MTI2Njk0&statusId=MTkxMjM1&noticeHeaderIdString=MTI2Njk0 

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change and Environmental Policy Division 
Resource Recovery Policy Branch  
Attention: Shari Sookhoo, Senior Policy Coordinator 
40 St Clair Ave. West, Floor 8 
Toronto, ON M4V 1M2 

Dear Ms. Sookhoo, 

Subject: Comments on Bill 151- Waste Free Ontario (WFO) Act (EBR No. 012-5832) 
and  

 Strategy for a Waste-Free Ontario: Building the Circular Economy (EBR No. 
012-5834) 

The following is our response to the Minister’s invitation for further dialogue on Ontario’s 
Environmental Bill of Rights Registry- Proposed Waste-Free Ontario Act and Draft Strategy for 
a Waste Free Ontario:  Building the Circular Economy. The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste 
Authority, on behalf of the City of Windsor and the County of Essex would like to take this 
opportunity to thank the Ministry for the invitation to participate in this important discussion. 

Background 

On November 26, 2015, the Provincial Government introduced Bill 151, the Waste- Free 
Ontario Act, which proposes to replace the Waste Diversion Act with two new Acts:  the 
Resource Recovery and Circular Economy Act (RRCEA) and the Waste Diversion Transition 
Act (WDTA).  

We support the key policy changes in the proposed Acts which include: 

• Development of Provincial interests (and future policy statements) to guide decision 
making. 

• Establishment of a new full producer responsibility regime where producers are 
accountable for recovering resources and reducing waste associated with their products 
and packaging. 
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• Creation of a Resource Productivity and Recovery Authority (RPRA) with enhanced 
compliance and enforcement tools to oversee the producer responsibility program and 
manage waste data. 

• The inclusion of a Waste Diversion Transition Act to allow for the smooth transition of 
existing Extended Producer Responsibility programs (Blue Box, Municipal Hazardous 
and Special Waste, Waste Electronics and Electrical Equipment, and Used Tires) to the 
new regime. 

• Development of a Strategy that sets out how the Province will implement the new 
framework. 

We recognize the inherent problems with the Waste Diversion Act and its inability to move 
waste diversion rates forward.   We also recognize the on-going problems with financial 
negotiations and the inability of municipalities to secure 50% of their actual net costs for 
operating the blue box program. 

We fully support the goals of the Ministry in reducing waste and minimizing greenhouse gas 
emissions and holding producers 100% responsible for their products and packaging at end of 
life. 

We offer the following comments in order to assist the Ministry in moving forward while at the 
same time avoiding many of the pitfalls of past policies and programs. 

Municipal Input 

We are concerned with the lack of attention in the proposed acts to the important role that 
municipalities currently play as the primary service provider of integrated municipal waste 
management systems.  As such we would expect that municipalities should play a key role 
going forward in every aspect of the development, transition, and continued progression and 
monitoring of waste management programs.   

The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority and the City of Windsor currently manage recycling 
collection, processing, yard waste collection and processing, MHSW programs, and waste 
disposal for the eight municipalities in the County of Essex, representing over 120,000 
households.  Between the operation of the municipal landfill, transfer stations, and 3R’s 
programs the annual budget is in excess of $22 million.  Municipalities are not just participants 
but are stakeholders and financial partners under the current system.   

We support the creation of a municipal advisory body to review and comment on proposed 
provincial policies and regulations and identify any financial burdens that may be placed on 
municipal waste operations or negatively impact diversion rates.  We also support equal 
municipal representation on any transition committee, the RPRA, and other waste related 
committees created to oversee waste diversion programs such as the Organic Waste Strategy.  
Municipal input is paramount to ensuring no decline in the current level of service and 
seamless transitions. 

Page 63 of 78



Comments – Bill 151 & Waste Free Ontario February 26, 2016 

Page 3 of 4 
H:\EWSWA\everyone\1 - Correspondence\2016 Correspondence\Letter - MOECC Shari Sookhoo RE Bill 151 and Strategy for Waste Free 

Ontario.docx 

Financial Implications 

We are concerned with the current lack of clarity in the Acts over how programs will be funded.  
We understand that there is currently nothing in the Acts to address the inherent problems 
associated with Section 25 (5) of the Waste Diversion Act regarding current funding levels.    

During the transition period, municipalities should receive 50% of actual net costs incurred by 
those municipalities with respect to the blue box program. 

Municipalities should also be compensated for any new costs as a result of the new legislative 
framework.  For example the imposition of landfill bans could result in an additional municipal 
financial burden. 

Full cost recovery should also include all municipal costs, including the cost of designated 
materials that end up in the municipal waste stream. 

There is also the issue of stranded assets and the fact that municipalities have invested 
millions of dollars in waste management infrastructure that they should be compensated for in 
the event of any significant changes. 

Recovery Targets 

Clarification is required on how targets will be set and specifically on the entity responsible for 
setting targets and/or performance measures. Targets and performance measures must focus 
on the intent of the proposed act to achieve greater diversion rates. Municipalities have been 
compiling data in this regard for many years and therefore ought to have input in this area 
under any new model. It is important to continue with similar measures so that historical 
comparisons and analyses can be made. 

Of primary importance is the penalty for failing to meet specific targets. Penalties have to be 
significant enough to drive producers to meet or exceed targets. Since any non-diverted 
designated materials will most likely end up in the municipal waste stream, a potential option is 
to have Bonds or Letters of Credit in place that can be paid as compensation to affected 
municipalities in the event that targets are not achieved. 

Designated Materials 

Designated Materials should include more than those currently being diverted. For example, 
Industrial/Commercial/Institutional Blue Box materials should also be designated. The Essex 
Windsor Solid Waste Authority manages the landfill that services the County of Essex.  It 
would therefore seem reasonable that municipalities such as ours should have input into the 
designation of materials to be diverted on an on-going basis. 

The issue of the transboundary flow of garbage also needs to be addressed especially in 
relation to stopping the transboundary shipment of designated materials across the border as 
waste.  This is of particular concern for our area as we border Michigan, United States where 
tipping fees and regulations are significantly different than in Ontario. 
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The WDTA only requires producers to fund activities related to reduction and resource 
recovery.  Designated materials that end up in the municipal waste stream will continue to be 
funded solely by the municipal tax base.  This provides no impetus to drive diversion and runs 
contrary to the principles of extended producer responsibility.  It is our recommendation that 
designated materials in municipal waste streams be fully funded by producers. 

There also needs to be a mechanism in place to prevent producers from using non-designated 
materials for packaging to avoid paying fees. 

Impact on Other Regulatory Commitments 

Municipalities are currently obligated under aspects of several different regulations.  These will 
also need to be revised in the event of significant changes in municipal responsibilities.  For 
example the current Environmental Compliance Approval for the Essex-Windsor Regional 
Landfill requires the provision of a municipal hazardous and special waste program. 

On behalf of the Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority, 

 

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 20, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject: Windsor Tender for Recycling Collection – Effective 2017 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to advise the Board that the City of Windsor, at its February 22, 
2016 Council meeting, awarded GFL (Green for Life) Environmental Inc. a contract for a 7 year 
period effective February 27, 2017 for the collection of recyclables within the City of Windsor.  
GFL is the current provider of the same service. 

The first year cost in 2017 will be $1,651,543.  The current 2016 budgeted cost is $1,319,400. 

Background 

The 1994 agreement between the City of Windsor and the County of Essex which created the 
Authority sets out that Windsor is responsible for recycling collection within the City of Windsor.  
In conjunction with that agreement language is language that states that the Authority can 
enter into an agreement with Windsor to purchase that particular service.  It is in this manner 
that the cost of Windsor recycling collection is included within the Authority’s budget.  In the 
same manner County recycling collection costs also form part of the Authority’s budget except 
that the County has empowered Authority administration to manage the tender call and 
subsequent contract.  The contract for County recycling collection expires on November 30, 
2017. 

Discussion 

Eight (8) companies picked up the recycling collection tender document.  Six (6) submitted a 
proposal and four (4) bidders’ proposals were qualified to be opened. 
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The tender results are as follows: 

GFL (Green for Life) Environmental Inc.  $1,651,543 

Windsor Disposal Services    $1,865,863 

Emterra      $2,239,223 

Miller Waste      $2,586,110 

 

Financial Impact 

The low tender amount of $1,651,543, effective February 27, 2017, will form part of the 
Authority’s 2017 budget which will be presented to the Board for deliberation later this year in 
November 2016. 

The new amount will be $332,000 more per year than the current cost for recycling collection 
in the City of Windsor. 

 

Recommendation 

For the Authority’s information. 

Submitted By 

  

Ilija Maodus, General Manager 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
Administrative Report 

April 20, 2016 

To: The Chair and Board of the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 
From: Cameron Wright, Manager of Waste Diversion 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, May 03, 2016 

Subject:  2015 Residential Waste Diversion Report 

Purpose 

To present a summary of some of the more interesting findings of the 2015 Residential Waste 
Diversion Report (attached separately). 

Background 

Annually the Authority produces a Waste Diversion Report which contains information on the 
various waste diversion programs and the related residential waste diversion rate.  Besides 
fulfilling Condition 5.2 of the Environmental Assessment Approval for the Regional Landfill, the 
report also provides the Authority with an instant source of information on all its waste 
diversion programs 

Discussion 

The major highlights of the waste diversion report are listed below: 

• The over-all waste diversion rate did not change between 2014 and 2015 and 
remained at 37.5%. 

• Residential recycling tonnage collected curbside decreased by 642 tonnes between 
2014 and 2015, resulting largely from a decrease in container tonnage, including 
mixed glass.  Unlike 2014 versus 2013, 2015 newspaper tonnage was consistent 
with 2014 levels. 

• The basket of goods sale of recyclable material revenue decreased from $133 per 
tonne in 2014 to $126 per tonne in 2015 (returning to the same level as 2013). 

• Organic Yard Waste tonnages from residential sources were up 3% from 21,967 
tonnes in 2014 to 22,678 tonnes in 2015. 
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• Compost Sales were modest in 2015 with revenue of approximately $167,000 
(slightly less that the budgeted amount of $175,000). 

• School programs and special event recycling continued in 2014 and again were very 
successful. 

• Other recyclables delivered to the public drop off depots, including tires, metal, and 
electronics, remained at consistent levels between 2014 and 2015. 

• Despite there being a number of commercial oil change options available to the 
public, more than 190,000 litres of motor were collected through the curbside 
recycling program. 

Recommendation 

For the Authority’s information. 

Submitted By 

 

Cameron Wright, Manager of Waste Diversion 

Attachment 

• 2015 Residential Waste Diversion Report (Separate Cover) 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 

By-Law Number 2-2016 

Being a By-Law to Authorize the Execution of an Agreement 
Between the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority, the County 
of Essex and Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. for 
the Rental and Use of Vacant Land. 

Whereas the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority has entered into an Agreement with the 
Corporation of the County of Essex (hereinafter referred to as the County) and Christopher 
Malott Farming Enterprises Inc (hereinafter referred to as the Tenant), dated May 3, 2016 
for the purpose of a lease agreement for lands owned by the Corporation of the County of 
Essex. 

Now Therefore the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority enacts as follows: 

1. That EWSWA hereby approves Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. upon and 
subject to the terms, covenants and conditions contained in the Lease Agreement. 

2. That the term of this Lease Agreement shall be for a period of 5 years commencing on 
the 1st day of November, 2016 and expiring on the 31st day of October, 2021, with 
three optional one-year extensions if mutually agreed upon by all parties, and subject to 
the conditions of the Lease Agreement; 

This By-Law shall take effect upon the final passing thereof. 

 
 

___________________________ 
Hilary Payne 

Chair 
 
 

___________________________ 
Ilija Maodus 

General Manager 

Read a First, Second And Third Time, Enacted and 
Passed This 3rd Day Of May 2016. 
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Lease Agreement 
(This Lease Agreement Made in Triplicate, this 3rd day of May, 2016) 

Between: The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (The Authority or the Landlord, of the first part) 
360 Fairview Ave. W., Suite 211, Essex Ontario, N8M 3G4 

And: Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. (The Tenant, of the second part) 
432 County Rd 34 W., Essex Ontario N8M 2X5 

And: The Corporation of the County of Essex (The County, of the third part)  
360 Fairview Ave. W., Suite 202, Essex Ontario N8M 1Y6 

For the Rental and Use of Vacant Land 
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In Consideration of the sum of $2.00 and other valuable consideration now paid by the Tenant to the 
Landlord, the Parties agree as follows: 

Item 1 

a) In consideration of the rents, covenants and agreements set out herein, the Landlord hereby 
leases the Demised Premises to the Tenant, which are comprised of vacant farm lands more 
particularly described on Schedule “A” attached hereto, and which lands are in the 
approximate locations as depicted on Schedule “B” attached hereto. 

b) The Demised Premises shall be used solely for general agricultural purposes, and shall at all 
times be used in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, by-laws and any other rules and 
regulations affecting the Demised Premises. 

Item 2 

a)  This Lease shall be for a term of 5 years commencing on the 1st day of November, 2016 and 
expiring on the 31st day of October, 2021, with three optional one-year extensions if mutually 
agreed upon by all parties, on the terms and conditions as set out in this Lease.   

b) In the event the Tenant has not removed all of the crops from the Demised Premises due to 
weather delays on or before October 31, 2021, the Landlord hereby agrees to continue to 
allow the Tenant access to those portions of the Demised Premises where crops have yet to 
be harvested, which access shall be permitted only on terms and conditions as agreed 
between the Landlord and Tenant at that time. 

Item 3 

a) The Tenant shall pay the Landlord rent based on an annual rent of $276.00 per acre plus 
H.S.T. and other applicable taxes, if any, for the estimated 824 acres that comprise the 
Demised Premises.  In the event the Landlord and the Tenant disagree as to the number of 
acres comprising the Demised Premises, the Tenant shall have the right to retain, at its 
expense, Setterington’s Fertilizer Service to provide its opinion on the number of acres 
contained in the Demised Premises.  In the event the Landlord does not agree with the 
acreage as determined by Setterington’s Fertilizer Service, the Landlord may, at its 
expense, retain the services of an Ontario Land Surveyor to verify the acreage of any 
parcel of the Demised Premises that is in dispute.  The determination by the Ontario Land 
Surveyor shall be final and binding.    
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b) Based on the assumption that the Demised Premises contains 824 acres, the annual rental 
payment of $227,424 plus applicable taxes shall be paid by the Tenant to the Landlord as 
follows: 

i. The sum of $50,000.00 plus applicable taxes payable on April 1, 2017 and each 
April 1 thereafter and $177,424 plus applicable taxes on November 1, 2017 and 
each November 1 of the remaining years in this Lease.  

ii. All rental payments shall be made payable to the Landlord and shall be delivered to 
the Landlord at 360 Fairview Avenue West, Suite 211, Essex, Ontario N8M 3G4. 

Item 4 

The Landlord shall have the right, upon giving at least 60 days notice to the Tenant, to remove from 
the Demised Premises a maximum of 100 acres of land that may be required by the Landlord for its 
purposes, in its sole discretion.  In the event the Tenant had planted crops on the lands being 
removed from the Demised Premises, the Landlord hereby agrees to compensate the Tenant as 
follows: 

a) to repay to the Tenant any rent paid to the Landlord for those acres of land removed from this 
Lease in the year in which the said land is so removed; and  

b) to pay compensation for damages done to any crops existing on the land at the time the said 
land is removed from this Lease.  The amount of compensation owing by the Landlord to the 
Tenant under this clause shall be negotiated as between them. 
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Item 5 

a) The Tenant covenants with the Landlord: 
i. to pay rent; 

ii. not to construct any structures or to leave any equipment or vehicles on the 
Demised Premises at any time;  

iii. not to discharge or spill any contaminates or pollutants on the Demised Premises or 
into the environment that causes or is likely to cause an adverse affect to the 
Demised Premises; 

iv. to maintain all entrance or access driveways to each parcel of the Demised 
Premises during the term of this Lease; 

v. upon termination of the tenancy, to leave the Demised Premises neat, clean, level 
and free of all waste material, debris and rubbish, and ready for a new crop in the 
following calendar year using conservation tillage practices;  

vi. that upon failure by the Tenant to comply with any covenant(s) under this Lease 
within 30 days after receiving written notice from the Landlord requiring such 
compliance, the Landlord may enter on and take possession of the Demised 
Premises until such time as the default by the Tenant has been corrected;  

vii. not to register this Lease or any notice thereof against the title to any portion of the 
Demised Premises; and  

viii. not to assign this Lease without the express written consent of the Landlord.   

b) The Tenant accepts the Demised Premises in the condition existing at the date of the 
commencement of the Term, and the Tenant shall be responsible for the cost of any grading or 
other alterations or improvements required in order to prepare the Demised Premises for 
farming purposes. 
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Item 6 

a) If the Tenant or an authorized assignee makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or 
becomes insolvent or commits an act of bankruptcy as defined by the Bankruptcy and 
Insolvency Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. B 3, or if the leasehold interest created by this Lease is at any 
time seized or taken in execution or in attachment, or if the Tenant is subjected to voluntary or 
compulsory  liquidation or winding up, or if the Demised Premises becomes abandoned, then, 
at the option of the Landlord, this Lease shall cease, the term shall be at an end and the 
Landlord may re enter and take possession of the Demised Premises. 

b) Notwithstanding any present or future statute of the Ontario Legislature, none of the Tenant's 
crops or chattels on the Demised Premises shall at any time during the Term be exempt from 
levy by distress for rent in arrears, and the Tenant, having waived any such exemption, shall 
by this clause be estopped from setting up any such exemption in any proceedings as between 
them. 

c) This Landlord is authorized to re enter the Demised Premises on non payment of rent or non 
performance of covenants. 

Item 7 

a) The Tenant shall at all times indemnify and save harmless the Landlord from and against any 
and all manner of claims, demands, losses, costs, charges, actions and other proceedings 
whatsoever (including those under or in connection with the Workplace Safety and Insurance 
Act, S.O. 1997, c.16, Sch. A, or any successor legislation), made or brought against, suffered 
by or imposed on the Landlord or its property in respect of any loss, damage or injury 
(including fatal injury) to any person or property (including, without restriction, employees, 
agents and property of the Landlord or of the Tenant) directly or indirectly arising out of, 
resulting from or sustained as a result of the Tenant's occupation or use of, or any operation in 
connection with, the Demised Premises except to the extent attributable to the Landlord's 
negligence. 

b) The Tenant shall, at all times during the currency of the Term, at its own expense maintain in 
force insurance coverage with respect to its use and occupation of the Demised Premises, and 
shall provide the Landlord with certificates of a policy or policies of an insurance company or 
companies to the Landlord for liability insurance for bodily injury, death or property damage for 
not less than $2,000,000.00 for each occurrence.   
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c) Every policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Tenant shall name the Landlord as co-
insured, and provide cross liability coverage and waiver of subrogation, and the Landlord may 
require the Tenant to supply evidence of such insurance from time to time. 

Item 8 

Subject to the Tenant duly paying the rent set out in this Lease, and duly keeping, observing and 
performing the covenants as set out in this Lease, the Landlord covenants with the Tenant for quiet 
enjoyment. 

Item 9 

Any notice pursuant to any of the provisions of this Lease shall be deemed to have been properly 
given if delivered in person, or mailed by prepaid first class mail addressed: 

i. in the case of notice to the Landlord to: 360 Fairview Avenue West, Suite 211, Essex, Ontario 
N8M 3G4, Attention: General Manager  

ii. in the case of notice to the Tenant to: 432 County Rd 34 W., Essex Ontario N8M 2X5, 
Attention: President 

or to such other address as either party may notify the other of, and in the case of mailing, such 
notice shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee, in the absence of a major 
interruption in postal service affecting the handling or delivery thereof, on the third business day 
following the date of mailing. 
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Item 10 

a) No condonation, excusing or overlooking by the Landlord of any default, breach or non 
observance of any of the Tenant's obligations under this Lease at any time or times shall affect 
the Landlord's remedies or rights with respect to any subsequent (even if by way of 
continuation) default, breach or non observance. 

b) No waiver shall be inferred from or implied by anything done or omitted by the Landlord. 

Item 11 

a) The termination of this indenture by expiry or otherwise shall not affect the liability of either 
party to this Lease to the other with respect to any obligation under this Lease which has 
accrued up to the date of such termination but not been properly satisfied or discharged. 

b) The Tenant acknowledges that there are no covenants, representations, warranties, 
agreements or conditions expressed or implied, collateral or otherwise forming part of or in any 
way affecting or relating to this Lease other than as set out in this Lease, which constitutes the 
entire agreement between the parties concerning the Demised Premises and which may be 
modified only by further written agreement under seal. 

c) The provisions of this Lease shall be binding upon, and enure to the benefit of, the parties and 
their respective successors and (where applicable), permitted assigns. 
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Lease Agreement 
(This Lease Agreement Made in Triplicate, this 3rd day of May, 2016) 

Between: The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (The Authority or the Landlord, of the first part) 
360 Fairview Ave. W., Suite 211, Essex Ontario, N8M 3G4 

And: Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. (The Tenant, of the second part) 
432 County Rd 34 W., Essex Ontario N8M 2X5 

And: The Corporation of the County of Essex (The County, of the third part)  
360 Fairview Ave. W., Suite 202, Essex Ontario N8M 1Y6 

For the Rental and Use of Vacant Land 

Page 7 of 7 

Item 12 

The Corporation of the County of Essex, as the registered owner of the Demised Premises, hereby 
consents to the terms and conditions of this Lease 

In witness whereof the parties hereto have hereunto affixed their corporate seal under the 
hands of their proper officers duly authorized in that behalf. 

Dated In Essex Ontario This 3rd Day Of May, 2016 

For Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 

__________________________________ 
Hilary Payne, Chair 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Ilija Maodus, General Manager 

For the Corporation of the County of Essex 

__________________________________ 
Tom Bain, Warden 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Mary Brennan, Clerk 

For Christopher Malott Farming Enterprises Inc. 

__________________________________ 
Signature 

 
 

__________________________________ 
Name & Title 
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Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority 

By-Law Number 3-2016 

Being A By-Law To Confirm The Proceedings Of The Meeting Of The 
Board Of The Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority. 

Whereas by Agreement dated 18 May 1994, made between the Corporation of the County of Essex 
and the Corporation of the City of Windsor, the Essex-Windsor Solid Waste Authority (The Authority) 
was created as a joint board of management pursuant to Sections 207.5 and 209.19 of the Municipal 
Act, RSO 1990, Chapter M.45 and; 

Whereas Subsection 5.(3) of the Municipal Act, RSO 2001, Chapter 25, provides that the powers of a 
municipality shall be exercised by By-Law and; 

Whereas Section 1 of the Municipal Act RSO 1990, Chapter M 46 defines a municipality as including 
a board, commission or other local authority exercising any power with respect to municipal affairs or 
purposes and; 

Whereas it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Authority at this meeting be confirmed 
and adopted by By-Law 

Now Therefore the members of the Authority enact as follows: 

1) The action of the members of the Authority in respect to each recommendation contained in 
the Report/Reports of the Committees and each motion and resolution passed and other 
action taken by the members of the Authority at this meeting is hereby adopted and confirmed 
as if all such proceedings were expressly set out in this by-law. 

2) The Chair and the proper officials of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all 
things necessary to give effect to the action of the members of the Authority referred to in the 
preceding section hereof. 

3) The Chair and the General Manager of the Authority are authorized and directed to execute all 
documents necessary in that behalf. 

Hilary Payne 
Chair 

Ilija Maodus 
General Manager 

Read a First, Second and Third Time, Enacted and Passed This 3rd 
Day of May, 2016. 
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